Minutes of the regular monthly meeting of the Planning Commission of the County of Henrico held in the County Administration Building in the Government Center at Parham and Hungary Spring Roads, beginning at 7:00 p.m. April 9, 2015. Display Notice having been published in the Richmond Times-Dispatch on March 23, 2015 and March 30, 2015.

6 Members Present:

Mr. Robert H. Witte, Jr., Chairman (Brookland)

Mr. C. W. Archer, C.P.C., Vice-Chairman (Fairfield)

Mr. Tommy Branin (Three Chopt)

Ms. Bonnie-Leigh Jones, C.P.C. (Tuckahoe)

Mr. Eric Leabough, C.P.C. (Varina)

Ms. Jean M. Moore, Assistant Director of Planning,

Acting Secretary

Mrs. Patricia S. O'Bannon,

Board of Supervisors' Representative

Member Absent:

Mr. R. Joseph Emerson, Jr., AICP, Director of Planning

Also Present:

Ms. Rosemary D. Deemer, AICP, County Planner

Mr. Seth Humphreys, County Planner Mr. Livingston Humphreys, County Planner Mrs. Lisa Blankinship, County Planner Mr. William Moffett, County Planner

Mr. John Cejka, County Traffic Engineer, Public Works

Ms. Sylvia Ray, Recording Secretary

7

Mrs. Patricia O'Bannon, the Board of Supervisors' representative, abstains on all cases unless otherwise noted.

9 10 11

12

13

Mr. Witte - Good evening. I'd like to call to order the April 9, 2015, meeting of the Planning Commission. This is our Zoning and Provisional Use Permit meeting. I would ask that you turn off your cell phones or mute them. While doing that, please stand with us for the Pledge of Allegiance.

14 15 16

Thank you. Do we have any media in the audience with us this evening? I see none.

17 18 19

20

All members are present; we have a quorum. We have Mrs. O'Bannon with us as the representative of the Board of Supervisors who will generally abstain from voting at this meeting because she will see them again at the Board.

21 22 23

With that, I'd like to turn the meeting over to our secretary, Ms. Moore.

24 25

26

27

Ms. Moore - Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Now we move to the requests for withdrawals and deferrals. Tonight, those will be presented by Mr. Seth Humphreys.

Mr. Humphreys -	We have no withdrawals and one deferral request this
evening. It is in the Th	ree Chopt District on page 2 of your agenda, PUP2015-
00003, RTF Sports and	I Entertainment Incorporated. It's located on the west line
of Pump Road approxi	mately 600 feet north of its intersection with Three Chops
Road. The request is to	amend Condition #5 of P-5-10 to reduce the width of a
pedestrian path and allo	ow extended hours of operation until 2 a.m. for an existing
restaurant. The applican	nt is requesting deferral to the October 15, 2015 meeting.

PUP2015-00003 John Mizell for RTF Sports and Entertainment, Inc.: Request for a Provisional Use Permit under Sections 24-58.2(a) and (d), 24-120, and 24-122.1 of the County Code in order to amend Condition #5 of P-5-10 to reduce the width of a pedestrian path and to allow extended hours of operation until 2 a.m. for an existing restaurant (Short Pump Pour House) in Short Pump Crossing Shopping Center, on part of Parcel 738-760-8449, located on the west line of Pump Road approximately 600' north of its intersection with Three Chopt Road. The existing zoning is B-2C Business District (Conditional). The 2026 Comprehensive Plan recommends Commercial Arterial. The site is in the West Broad Street Overlay District.

Mr. Witte - Do we have any opposition to PUP2015-00003, John Mizell for RTF Sports and Entertainment, Inc.? I see none.

Mr. Branin - Mr. Chairman, I would like to move that PUP2015-00003, John Mizell for RTF Sports and Entertainment, Inc., be deferred to the October 15, 2015 meeting per the applicant's request.

Mr. Archer - Second.

Mr. Witte - We have a motion by Mr. Branin, a second by Mr. Archer. All in favor say aye. All opposed say no. The ayes have it; the motion passes.

At the request of the applicant, the Planning Commission deferred PUP2015-00003, John Mizell for RTF Sports and Entertainment, Inc., to its meeting on October 15, 2015.

Ms. Moore - Mr. Chairman, next would be requests for expedited items. We do not have any requests for those. So with that, we move into your regular agenda tonight. We do have six cases to be heard. The first in your regular agenda for this evening is in the Varina District on page 1 of your agenda. This is REZ2014-00016, Ross Run LLC. This was deferred from you March 12, 2015 meeting. Ms. Lisa Blankinship will be re-presenting this tonight.

April 9, 2015

(Deferred from the March 12, 2015 Meeting)

REZ2014-00016 Ross Run, LLC: Request to conditionally rezone from R-2AC One-Family Residence District (Conditional) and A-1 Agricultural District to R-5AC General Residence District (Conditional) part of Parcel 824-689-0488 and Parcel 824-694-2155 containing 139.66 acres, located between the south line of Darbytown Road at its intersection with Macallan Parkway and the east line of Doran Road approximately 960' south of its intersection with Macallan Parkway. The applicant proposes a single-family residential development. The R-5A district allows a maximum density of six (6) units per acre. The use will be controlled by zoning ordinance regulations and proffered conditions. The 2026 Comprehensive Plan recommends Suburban Residential 1, density should not exceed 2.4 units per acre, and Environmental Protection Area. The site is located in the Airport Safety Overlay District.

Mr. Witte - Thank you. Do we have any opposition to REZ2014-00016, Ross Run, LLC? We have opposition.

Ms. Moore - Do you want me to read the rules and regs?

Mr. Witte - If you will, please.

Ms. Moore - Okay. The Commission does have rules for the public hearing process and they are as follows: The applicant or the representative is allowed ten minutes to present their request, and any time may be reserved for responses to testimony. Opposition is also allowed ten minutes to present its concerns. This is ten minutes cumulative for all speakers inclusive, not ten minutes per speaker. The Commission can waive those time limits if needed. And also any questions that the Commission asks are not counted against that ten-minute time. Please keep your comments directly related to the case at hand. Thank you.

Mr. Witte - Thank you. You have the floor, Mrs. Blankinship.

Mrs. Blankinship - Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members of the Commission.

As the secretary mentioned, this request was presented in detail at the March 12, 2015 Planning Commission hearing. The case was deferred for one month by the Commission so the applicant could work through concerns that included minimum square footages, percentage of homes with brick or stone fronts, prohibition of cantilevering, and phasing of the construction of amenities.

To summarize the request, the applicant proposes to rezone approximately 140 acres from R-2AC to R-5AC with commitments to lot sizes and widths consistent with the R-3A district. This request would allow smaller lot sizes located to the north of Ross Run Creek in Castleton for a total of 335 new homes. This is a

potential increase of 91 homes from the previously approved conditional subdivision of 242.

121 122 123

120

The applicant has submitted revised proffers, the latest of which have been handed out to you this evening. The proffers address some of the concerns that were raised in the staff report and by the Commission.

125 126

124

 Proffer #8 ensures garage doors would be consistent with the proffered elevations.

127 128

 Proffer #10 increases the percentage of homes with partial brick or stone fronts from 35 percent to 40 percent.

129 130 131

 Proffer #11 ensures that the architecture of the homes would be generally consistent with the proffered elevations.

133 134

132

 Proffer #25 pertains to the construction phasing of the recreational amenities and ensures that all amenities would be completed by the issuance of the 500th building permit. In addition, the proposed fitness center would be architecturally consistent with the existing clubhouse.

135136137

138

 Proffer #9 commits that only chimneys of wood burning fireplaces, would have a brick, stone, or cultured stone foundation. However, staff recommends the applicant prohibit any cantilevering of architectural features on the first floor to be consistent with the proffered elevations and recent rezoning cases in the area.

139 140 141

142

143

144

 Proffer #5 increases the overall minimum finished floor area at two different levels. Forty-five percent of the homes would range between 1,800 and less than 2,100 square feet while 55 percent of the homes would be greater than 2,100 square feet.

145146147

148

149

150

151

152

The applicant has submitted a number of proffers that would regulate development of the property, provide a number of architectural and landscaping quality assurances, and additional commitments for recreational amenities. However, staff has concerns regarding the cantilevering of architectural elements and notes the minimum square footages would be less than the most recently approved rezoning case in Castleton that requires 2,200 square feet for two-story homes and is less than the as-built square footage average of 2,679 square feet.

153154155

Staff could be more supportive of this request if the applicant could address these concerns. Until such time, staff recommends deferral of this request.

156157158

This concludes my presentation, I will be happy to try and answer any questions.

159 160

Mr. Witte - Do we have any questions? Yes, Ms. Jones.

161162

Ms. Jones - Just to make sure I understand what you just said, Mrs. Blankinship. The cantilevering is a big concern for staff and has been noted so in the staff report and going forward. Would you explain why?

164 165

Mrs. Blankinship -The cantilevering, we've had more in recent cases 166 within the area. Cantilevering has been prohibited out for most of the homes that 167 we have of the cases. 168 169 Ms. Jones -Is it a quality issue— 170 171 Mrs. Blankinship -Yes ma'am. 172 173 Ms. Jones -—or a structural issue? 174 175 176 Mrs. Blankinship -Yes ma'am, quality. 177 178 Ms. Jones -Okay. The other thing I was just trying to speed read 179 as we all do when we get these proffers put in front of us is #25. What I understood from what you said was that the amenities—and I think they're really 180 important parts of a quality community. The amenities need to be complete—I'm 181 trying to think exactly what you said—by the time that the certificate of occupancy 182 is issued for the 500th? 183 184 Mrs. Blankinship -Yes, for overall for Castleton, the 500th. 185 186 Ms. Jones -187 I'm not sure that that last sentence says that. It says that upon issuance of the 500th overall building permit, the developer shall 188 complete the amenities. It doesn't say within what time frame. If it means that 189 they must be completed by the issuance of that permit, then maybe there needs 190 to be another look at that wording, that's all. I'm not sure it reads that way. Just a 191 192 thought. 193 There's additional language, Mrs. Blankinship, if I'm 194 Mr. Leabough not mistaken, that speaks to basically the amenities shall be commenced by the 195 196 160th permit. 197 Mrs. Blankinship -Right. 198 199 200 Mr. Leabough -But depending upon the comfort level of the community in terms of whether they can financially support all the amenities at 201 once or whether it's a phased approach. But at not later than the 500th permit. 202 203 those amenities have to be completed by that date. 204 Mrs. Blankinship -Yes sir. 205 206 Mr. Leabough -Now, they could happen sooner. 207 208 Mrs. Blankinship -Yes. 209

April 9, 2015 5 Planning Commission

211 212 213	Mr. Leabough - permit.	But at the latest it shall be upon issuance of the 500th
214 215	Mrs. Blankinship -	Yes.
216 217 218	Mr. Leabough - know what you're getting address the concern.	So maybe that needs to be tightened up. I think I at there. And maybe it's just to nuance the wording to
219 220 221 222 223		And just one other follow-up. The amenities shall be sagreed upon by the developer and the advisory ario where they couldn't reach agreement?
224 225 226	Ms. Moore - Jones?	Is that still in the handout, the newest one, Mrs.
227 228	Ms. Jones -	Yes.
229 230	Mrs. Blankinship -	Okay.
231 232 233	Ms. Jones - things.	Just being an ex-English teacher I think of these
234 235	Mrs. Blankinship -	Thank you.
236 237	Mr. Leabough -	Slash attorney, right?
238 239	Ms. Jones -	And I'm learning for future subdivisions in Tuckahoe.
240 241 242 243		Mrs. Blankinship, could you repeat again what the otal square footages as opposed to as-built square scaped me. I think I heard you say that.
244 245 246 247 248	would range between 1,8	The applicant is proposing 45 percent of the homes 00 square feet and less than 2,100 square feet. And mes would be greater than 2,100 square feet. The assquare feet.
249 250	Mr. Archer -	That's the part I was looking for. Okay.
251252253	Mr. Leabough - area proposed to be R-5A different zoning cases R-2	Mrs. Blankinship, one other question. So currently the C—that area was previous zoned through a number of AC.
254255256	Mrs. Blankinship - the map.	Yes. And I have that illustration, if you'd like to see it,

	257		
ν.	258	Mr. Leabough -	The map that kind of shows the different sections and
	259	the different cases. The ar	rea in red as you show it on the screen was previously
	260		of different cases R-2AC, but the minimum square
	261	footage that was required	was 1,800 square feet, if I'm not mistaken.
	262		
	263	Mrs. Blankinship -	Yes sir.
	264		
	265	Mr. Leabough -	So essentially, 45 percent of the homes would be in
	266	line with what was already	required.
	267	M BI II II	V
	268	Mrs. Blankinship -	Yes sir.
	269	Mr. Leabough -	Another 55 percent would be eccentially just 200
	270 271	square feet larger.	Another 55 percent would be essentially just 300
	272	square reet larger.	
	273	Mrs. Blankinship -	Yes sir.
	274	Wie. Blankinerije	100 011.
	275	Mr. Leabough -	Potentially. That's minimum.
	276	•	•
	277	Mrs. Blankinship -	Minimum.
	278		
М	279	Mr. Leabough -	That doesn't mean that they can't exceed it. So just
ν.	280		that I wrote down, right now we have 88 homes in
	281		e developer is proffering or is going to amend the
	282		livision to increase the square footage from 1,200 to
	283	1,500.	
	284 285	Mrs. Blankinship -	Yes sir.
	286	Wis. Blankinship -	165 511.
	287	Mr. Leabough -	So you have eight-eight homes there, if I'm not
	288	mistaken.	or you have eight eight hemore there, if the hot
	289	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	290	Mrs. Blankinship -	Actually, two have been built, so there are eighty-six.
	291		
	292	Mr. Leabough -	Eighty-six homes there. You have 150 homes, based
	293		staken, that could be 1,800-square-feet minimum. You
	294		lld be, at a minimum, 2,100 square feet. So if you look
	295		ty, 56 percent of the homes could be between 1,500
	296	•	w you just told us a number of 2,600 as the average of
	297	what's been built there.	
	298	Mar Diaglainakia	Twenty six seventy sine was six
	299	Mrs. Blankinship -	Twenty-six seventy-nine, yes sir.
	300 301	Mr. Leabough -	So that means that 44 percent of the homes going
	302		00 square feet at minimum.

303		
304	Mrs. Blankinship -	Yes sir.
305		
306	Mr. Leabough -	So, the majority of the homes would be what was
307	already allowed.	
308	•	
309	Mrs. Blankinship -	Yes sir.
310		
311	Mr. Leabough -	In terms of square footage, it's not a significant
312	departure from that was al	
313		
314	Mrs. Blankinship -	Yes sir.
315		
316	Mr. Leabough -	Okay.
317	3	·
318	Mr. Branin -	Just a real quick question because, as you can see,
319	I'm doing math here, too,	trying to figure out #5. Section 3 of Castleton. What is
320	the current minimum?	
321		
322	Mrs. Blankinship -	Twelve hundred square feet.
323		
324	Mr. Branin -	Okay.
325		
326	Mr. Witte -	What's the total number of units in this development?
327		
328	Mrs. Blankinship -	It was originally approved for 494 homes-250 south
329	of Ross Run Creek, 242	to the north. With this proposal, it was increase the
330	number on the south by 91	, which would be 335, for a total of 585 homes.
331		
332	Mr. Witte -	Thank you.
333		
334	Mrs. Blankinship -	That's the number you were looking for.
335		
336	Mr. Witte -	My math wasn't working. Do we have any other
337	questions from the Commis	ssion? How would you like to proceed, sir?
338		
339	Mr. Leabough -	I'd like to hear from the opposition first, please.
340		
341	Mr. Witte -	Can the opposition please come forward, anybody
342	that would like to speak in	opposition to this. They were sitting there.
343		
344	Mr. Leabough -	Could the applicant please come forward? And if the
345	opposition comes back, we	e'll have them raise their concerns.
346		
347	Mr. Rudiger -	I'm David Rudiger. I'm president of Boyd Homes in
348	Ross Run. I had a really fa	ancy presentation for you all with videos and live music

and so forth, but unfortunately I'm a little under the weather tonight, so I'm going to try to keep this brief and to the point.

There are a lot of numbers that are flying around here, and they get kind of confusing. I want to see if I can clarify some of them. In some ways, we're comparing some apples and oranges.

With regard to the minimum square footage—I don't know how to use this thing. Could you bring up the one that showed the old cases? Right. This property has gotten over the course of time in a number of different cases, and each one of them had slightly different proffered conditions. I think there are either three or four cases for the property that we're dealing with tonight. I think that one of those cases had a minimum of 1,800 square feet. I think some of the others had a minimum of 1,500 square feet. And then we have the section in the existing section four that was 1,200 square feet as a minimum on the size of the house.

We've agreed in every instance to either maintain or increase—and most all of them, except that one—several homes—increase the minimum size of the homes. We have agreed to increasing the quality of materials as a base level I think we're already using quality materials out there. I'm not trying to imply otherwise. But we've agreed to increase minimums. Now in some cases what was being given out here were averages, the average size of the house in Castleton is this. So the average is about 2,600, I think you said. That was dealing with minimum standards that said that we could build 1,200 square feet.

So we're not all about trying to build to the minimum. We're trying to build to the market. And we're trying to give ourselves sufficient flexibility to be able to build quality homes that people want to buy and live in. And I think for those of you who have gone out and driven through Castleton, we're proud of the community. We think it's a good-looking community. And we intend to keep on building it as a high-quality community in Henrico.

We've spent a lot of time in this case working with the homeowners association. The head of the advisory committee—and I see one of our other advisory committee members is here. We're worked closely with them in coming up with the set of proffered conditions and the changes to the amenities and trying to have a community that everyone is going to be happy with. We've also worked with the County on this in trying to address their concerns. And I think we right now have a presentation for you to vote on that is good for the community, good for the County, and it's a quality development.

I'm happy to answer any questions.

Mr. Witte - Any questions by the Commission?

April 9, 2015 9 Planning Commission

394	Mr. Branin -	In that 1,200 square foot or 1,800 square foot, what
395	do you anticipate building	?
396		
397	Mr. Rudiger -	I'm not sure—
398		
399	Mr. Branin -	Square-footage wise.
400		
401	Mr. Rudiger -	Our lineup now ranges from—I think we have one
402	house that's about 1,500	square feet—one—up to over 3,000 square feet.
403		Ol I was to all assets I was despited assessed
404	Mr. Branin -	Okay. I understand market. I understand square
405		t wanting to be tied down. I know the commissioner of
406		estling you now for quite a few months in regards to
407		are doing a good job—the amenities that are going in
408		enities. And we've all reviewed it. I just never have really to go so low when you could take it 200 to 300 square
409 410		ly a better feel of confidence. It's not my district, but it's
411	kind of mindboggling to m	•
412	Kind of mindbogging to n	ic.
413	Mr. Rudiger -	We're trying, again, to deliver quality. And some
414	•	nat larger home. They want to be able to buy a smaller
415	home.	at larger from they want to be able to buy a circular
416		
417	Mr. Branin -	I get that. But in one hand you just said that this is
418		planning to do. But then you're proffering here—I don't
419		it an extra 200. That's just my opinion.
420		
421	Mr. Leabough -	I think you have 238 opportunities to build to that
422	market. Based on just loc	oking at the square footages of the as-builts, the market
423		nk the market is somewhere in the middle between 18
424	and whatever you've but	ilt out there today. I think the largest home was 4,000
425	square feet?	
426		
427	Mr. Rudiger -	That would have been more of Ryan's Homes.
428	14.1	D. 4.22 - 0
429	Mr. Leabough -	But it's the same development.
430	Mr. Dudiner	Vecuse
431	Mr. Rudiger -	Yes, yes.
432	Mr. Leabough	So I think the market is a little bit higher than what
433 434	Mr. Leabough - you're proffering, just to b	
434	you're proficing, just to b	to honost.
436	Mr. Rudiger -	I believe that it is too. But these are minimums. And I
437	•	ne other thing. When Mrs. Blankinship was presenting
438		is saying that it was going to be 45 percent that were
439		O. The way that we've written that is that no more than
	,	,

440 45 percent. So it might only be 10 percent that falls into that. That's just setting a 441 maximum. 442 443 Mr. Leabough -I only can react to what's on the paper, though. 444 Mr. Rudiger -445 Right. 446 447 Mr. Leabough -I do want to clarify one thing, so hang tight. Mrs. Blankinship, my review of the case files for the R-2A sections, whatever case it 448 is, all those cases have a minimum square footage of 1,800 square feet, correct? 449 450 Mrs. Blankinship -The only one that does not is C-41C-90, which is the 451 one in purple, which is not part of-452 453 454 Mr. Leabough -It's not part of this request. 455 Mrs. Blankinship -Right. But also C-20C-99—in the upper left-hand 456 corner, outlined in yellow—a portion of that is in this section. The proffers on that: 457 one-story, 1,500 square feet; two-story, 1,800 square feet. And then C-65C-04, 458 right below that, 1,800 square feet for one story, 2,200 square feet for two 459 stories. 460 461 Mr. Leabough -So what's required now for two stories is actually 462 higher than what's being proffered. 463 464 465 Mrs. Blankinship -In that section, the brown section, C-65C-04. 466 467 Mr. Leabough -Okay. 468 May I ask something? Ms. Jones -469 470 471 Mr. Leabough -Yes, yes. 472 Ms. Jones -I'm getting a little bit lost in the sea of square footages 473 here. I just have a question for Mr. Rudiger. And maybe Mrs. Blankinship would 474 know the answer as well. Just looking at the illustrations that were sent to us in 475 our staff report—I'm sure you're familiar with those particular models that were 476 given to us—are any of those presented to us as illustrative of what you're doing, 477 a home that would be 12 or 1,500 square feet? 478 479 Mr. Rudiger -480 No. 481 482 Ms. Jones -When I look at these illustrations, which are being provided to us by you as an example of what you are planning to do, I don't see 483 anything there that looks like it could possibly be what we would consider and 484

485 486		like to have the option to, which is a smaller home. I lovely homes. Castleton is a beautiful community.
487 488	Mr. Rudiger -	This elevation would be an example of a house that is
		So we would not build that elevation at its current
489 490		be under 1,800 square feet.
491		
492 493	Ms. Jones - us that might qualify for up	So that's the only one of the ones that you provided to nder 1.800 square feet?
494		
495	Mr. Rudiger -	Yes ma'am.
496	Mr. Janes	Mall access to see if we decided the filtretestions and
497 498		Well, seems to me if you're providing illustrations and er 1,800 square feet, then that's kind of where you're
499 500	headed, it sounds like. B interpreted it.	ased on what you're giving us to see. That's the way I
501		
502	Mr. Rudiger -	Right. So yes, we intend to be over 1,800 square feet.
503	•	red. We would love to be in the 2,000s. And probably
504	most of them will be.	,
505	111001 01 1110111 11111 20.	
506	Ms. Jones -	Okay.
507	1413. 001103	Onay.
508	Mr. Archer -	Sir, can I ask a question?
509	Wil. 7 GOTIO	on, oan raok a quodion:
510	Mr. Rudiger -	Yes sir.
511	Wil. Radiger	100 011.
512	Mr. Archer -	In terms of how you market these houses, is the
513		he have the opportunity to choose the lot he wants to
514	build on?	no have the opportunity to one occ the lot he wante to
515	balla off:	
516	Mr. Rudiger -	These are semi-custom homes, and so we will build
517	0	fications or frequently we will start a house and then the
518	buyer will just end up cho	
519	buyer will just end up cho	osing the lina linishes.
520	Mr. Archer -	But does the buyer have the option of choosing the
521	lot.	but does the buyer have the option of choosing the
522	lot.	
523	Mr. Rudiger -	Yes sir.
524	Mi. Rudigei -	165 511.
525	Mr. Archer -	So how would you apportion the different size homes
		choose? What I'm driving at is that in communities that
526 527		in terms of square footages, usually the idea is not to
		particular kind right next to each other.
528 529	put all of the houses of a p	Darticular Kind right hext to each other.
530	Mr. Rudiger -	Yes sir.
230	WII. I LUUIGEI -	I C3 3II.

531		
532	Mr. Archer -	Do you see what I'm driving at?
533		
534	Mr. Rudiger -	Yes sir.
535		
536	Mr. Archer -	Do you all have a method of determining how you
537	• •	er homes as opposed to the larger ones, particularly if
538	the buyer has an option to	choose whatever lot they want?
539		
540	Mr. Rudiger -	Right. For one thing, we have intentionally on the
541		having some lots that are slightly wider and some lots
542		so that still meeting the minimum lot square-footage
543		different houses that will fit on different lots. And so
544		us with a smaller house, then if they want to put that on
545		to have to pay premium for that lot. The idea is the
546	larger lots are for the large	er nouses.
547 548	Mr. Archer -	Okay So there is a price to be poid if they went to de
549	that.	Okay. So there is a price to be paid if they want to do
550	triat.	
551	Mr. Rudiger -	They have the freedom of choice, but there is a price
552	to pay.	They have the freedom of choice, but there is a price
553	to pay.	
554	Mr. Archer -	Okay. Thank you.
555		onay. Main you.
556	Mr. Leabough -	Mr. Rudiger, I'm struggling with the case, but I'm
557	9	ere. If we could get you to commit to the 2,200 that's
558		ne case, if we could bump that up to 2,200 square feet
559		antilevering, is that something that's an option?
560		
561	Mr. Rudiger -	Actually, I was not aware of that section, and certainly
562	it was not our intention to	downgrade any of the sizes. So we would be agreeable
563	to making sure that the h	ouses that are in that area meet the same standards
564	that they would meet today	y.
565		
566	Mr. Leabough -	Okay, that's not what I'm saying.
567		
568	Mr. Rudiger -	Oh, I'm sorry. I thought that's what you were saying.
569		
570	Mr. Leabough -	I'm saying for the overall development, can I get you
571		ering? Or is that something that's totally out of the
572	question?	
573	M D /	V
574	Mr. Rudiger -	You want a minimum square footage of—
575		

576 577 578 579 580 581 582 583	would be 2,100, can we a and eliminate cantileverin section over the garage decorative corbels. So if w	No, no, no. For the 55 percent that the minimum at least be consistent with that section and make it 22 g? The only issue that I see is you have a cantilevered there. That is actually fine because it has those we could kind of work through that between now and the the 55 percent from 2,100 to 2,200, and then work on it.
584 585	Mr. Rudiger -	I am agreeable to the change from 21 to 22. Yes.
586 587	Mr. Leabough -	And then working on the cantilevering in terms of—
588 589 590 591 592 593	beginning. No one's eve	The cantilevering, I would love to hear more from the a problem. We've been doing in Castleton since the r complained about it. We've never had a structural o I'm open to hearing what the problem is that we're
594	Mr. Leabough -	So we can work on the cantilevering piece of it.
595 596 597	Mr. Rudiger -	Yes sir.
598 599	Mr. Leabough -	If I hear you correctly.
600	Mr. Rudiger -	Yes sir.
601 602 603 604	Mr. Leabough - case?	I think we have someone still in opposition to this
605 606	Mr. Archer -	Yes, she came back.
607 608	Mr. Witte -	Please state your name for the record.
609 610 611	Ms. Joan Robinson - Robinson. We live on Dora	Joan Robinson. We live on—this is my sister, Jean an Road.
612	Ms. Jean Robinson -	They're in opposition because—
613 614	Ms. Joan Robinson -	The amount of houses.
615 616	Ms. Jean Robinson -	There's the ridiculous amount of houses there now.
617 618	Mr. Witte -	Excuse me. What's your name?
619 620	Ms. Jean Robinson -	Jean Robinson.

622 623	Mr. Witte -	Okay, thank you.
624 625 626 627 628 629	put these other homes, the ruin the integrity of what ridiculous right now on the	Already it's too many homes. And then they want to e smaller ones, in a dense area. And I think it's going to a Castleton has achieved already. The traffic is just not little road that we have. You already have three little road. You have Castleton and you have Four Mile prest.
630 631 632 633	Ms. Joan Robinson - more traffic.	It's not conducive to all this traffic. It's going to make
634 635	Mr. Leabough -	So traffic is your main concern?
636 637	Ms. Joan Robinson -	Right.
638 639	Mr. Leabough -	And then the density.
640 641 642 643	outlet? Is it going to be o	With all of these additional homes, where is the n Darbytown or Doran? I know we already have one And we need to limit the number of homes that keep ment.
645	Ms. Jean Robinson -	For one road, it's like enough is enough.
646	Mr. Leabough -	Traffic and density. Thank you.
648 649 650	Mr. Witte -	Is there any other opposition?
651 652	Mr. Leabough -	Mr. Cejka? So, traffic.
653 654	Mr. Cejka -	Yes sir.
655 656 657	Mr. Leabough - Road can handle, as well a	Can you speak to that, please, in terms of what Doran as Darbytown?
658 659	Mr. Cejka - vehicles, and Darbytown F	Yes. Doran Road currently has approximately 2800 Road has approximately 3600 vehicles per day.
660	Mr. Leabough -	That it can handle?
662 663 664	Mr. Cejka - road can handle up to 10 t	No, that's what it currently has traffic-wise. A two-lane o 12,000 vehicles.
665	Mr. Leabough -	So in your assessment, this would yield what in terms

((0		
668	Mr. Cejka -	Trips per day?
670	Wil. Oojha	mpo por ady.
671 672	Mr. Leabough -	Or/and a.m. and p.m. peak.
673 674 675		The a.m. and p.m. peak would be approximately 230 hat's coming and going—entering and exiting the site. have about 280 cars added to the existing traffic.
676 677	Mr. Branin -	What is the width of Doran?
678 679	Mr. Cejka -	Doran Road is twenty-four feet.
680 681 682 683	Mr. Leabough - a.m. peak.	I'm not sure. Give me those numbers again? So 230
684 685	Mr. Cejka -	Correct.
686 687	Mr. Leabough -	And then 250?
688	Mr. Cejka -	Two hundred and eighty.
690 691	Mr. Leabough -	Two eighty; I'm sorry.
692 693	Mr. Branin -	And that's additional.
694 695	Mr. Cejka -	That's additional.
696 697	Mr. Branin -	And what is the current count?
698 699	Mr. Cejka -	For the existing subdivision?
700 701 702	Mr. Branin - you guys do a study?	Yes. Well, for the existing road count for—when did
703 704	Mr. Cejka -	We did it last year.
705 706	Mr. Branin -	Last year. And what was count?
707 708 709	Mr. Cejka - vehicles per day on Darby	It was 2,800 vehicles per day on Doran and 3,600 town.
710 711 712	Mr. Branin - you're saying 3,080 at ful rates for?	So 2,800. So you're saying an additional 280. So ll build-out for that 24-foot road. And a 24-foot road is

April 9, 2015

/14	IVII. Cejka -	it will go between to and 12,000 vehicles.
715	Mr. Dunnin	Olean Sa in man actimates
716 717	Mr. Branin -	Okay. So in your estimate?
717	Mr. Cejka -	It can handle the traffic.
719		
720	Mr. Branin -	Okay.
721		
722	Ms. Jones -	Excuse me. Did you say there are 280 cars coming
723	and going, peak times, for	335 residential units?
724	Mr. Caika	That's serrest That's for the n m neek
725	Mr. Cejka -	That's correct. That's for the p.m. peak.
726 727	Ms. Jones -	Okay. Just seems to me that that's less than one car
728	per unit.	oray. The that that a loss than one can
729	por arm.	
730	Mr. Cejka -	That's correct. This is based on the formulas we have,
731	the federal standard form	ulas we use. That is just during the p.m. peak. That's
732	only for the one hour. So	some people may come after that one hour or before
733	that one hour.	
734		
735	Ms. Jones -	Okay. Something doesn't quite ring true with me, but I
736	don't have your formulas to	o work with. It just seems logical. All right.
737 738	Mr. Witte -	Any other questions? Thank you, sir. Mr. Leabough.
739	Wil. VVIII.	Triff office questions: Thank you, sir. Wit. Loubough.
740	Mr. Leabough -	This has been a tough case. It still is a tough case.
741	•	concern; it always is a concern. But at the end of the
742	day, that this is already	a large development I think has been stated. It was
743		omes. They're proposing to add another 91. And in
744		nomes, I think the community, the people who are
745		something in exchange for that. They're getting some
746		ht they were promised when they bought their homes.
747		ne developer didn't deliver what they were required to e they were sold one thing or they thought that this
748 749		enities that what are there now. I think at the end of the
750		nenities that they thought would be here. And I think the
751	amenities make a better co	
752		
753		they're getting, though, are some assurances in terms
754		at will be built here. They are actually getting some
755		hitectural materials that I don't think were represented
756	in the previous cases. It's	still a tough case. I think traffic is always an issue.

758

759

And counts are high, but it's what the people experience day-to-day getting in

and out of the community. But at the end of the day, I think this is a better case

than what it was back in 1989 and 2005 or 2006. I think it's a much better case. Am I thrilled that it's an R-5A that really resembles and R-3A? No, I would have loved to have had all R-2A homes. But it is consistent with what's been built there to date. So it's not a significant departure from what is currently there.

With the commitment that Mr. Rudiger shared about looking at increasing the square footage and looking at the cantilevering—it's not a perfect case, but I think that I can move forward with recommending this case to the Board of Supervisors for approval on the condition that we are able to work through those details between now and then.

 So with that, I move that REZ2014-00016, Ross Run, LLC, move forward to the Board of Supervisors with a recommendation of approval subject to the conditions distributed tonight, numbers 1 through 27. And there is no requirement to waive the time limits, correct? Okay.

Mr. Branin - Second.

Mr. Witte - We have a motion by Mr. Leabough, a second by Mr. Branin. All in favor say aye. All opposed say no. The ayes have it; the motion passes.

REASON - Acting on a motion by Mr. Leabough, seconded by Mr. Branin, the Planning Commission voted 5-0 (one abstention) to recommend the Board of Supervisors <u>grant</u> the request because it would permit development of the land for residential use in an appropriate manner and the proffered conditions will provide appropriate quality assurances not otherwise available.

Mr. Branin - Mr. Rudiger, can you do me a favor? Before this gets to the Board, could you definitely clean up the language in five? I took at least six minutes trying to figure out what that was saying.

Mr. Rudiger - Yes sir.

Ms. Moore - Mr. Chairman, the next case is also on page 1 in the Varina District. It is REZ2014-00040. The applicant is Steve Smith for Antioch Plan Developers, LLC. In place of Livingston Humphreys, who is the case planner, this will be presented by Mr. Seth Humphreys.

(Deferred from the March 12, 2015 Meeting)

REZ2014-00040 Steve Smith for Antioch Plan Developers, LLC: Request to conditionally rezone from A-1 Agricultural District to R-6C General Residence District (Conditional) part of Parcel 848-710-9248 containing 8.44 acres located approximately 500' northwest of the intersection of Elko Road and Elko School Road. The applicant proposes a home for the aged with a maximum of 118 units. The R-6 district allows a minimum lot size of 2,200 square feet and

proffered Plan red	d condition	lensity of 19.8 units per acre. The use will be controlled by and zoning ordinance regulations. The 2026 Comprehensive Semi-Public and Suburban Residential 1, density should not acre.
Mr. Witte	_	Do we have any opposition to REZ2014-00040. The mith for Antioch Plan Developers, LLC? We have opposition.

Mr. Humphreys.

Mr. Humphreys - Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members of the Commission.

This is a request to rezone 8.44 acres from A-1 Agricultural to R-6C General Residence (Conditional) to allow a 118-bed home for the aged with independent living, assisted living, and memory care components.

The subject site is part of a larger parcel owned by New Bridge Baptist Church, located to the north of the intersection of Elko Road and Elko School Road. The Robbin Dale Farms neighborhood is adjacent to the northeast of the church, and the Old Cannon subdivision is located across Elko Road to the west. Elko Middle School is southeast of the site.

The 2026 Comprehensive Plan recommends Semi-Public uses for most of the subject site, with the remainder designated Suburban Residential 1.

 The facility would be constructed in general conformance with this proffered conceptual plan (Exhibit A). Site access is proposed through the church property via a private drive with an access easement leading to a single internal access to the subject property.

The one- and two-story, 80,000-square-foot building would be constructed according to these proffered elevations (Exhibit B). Currently, the applicant anticipates 12 independent living units, 58 assisted living units, and 40 memory care units.

In addition to the layout and building elevations, the applicant's April 3, 2015, proffers, which have just been handed out to you, also include the following major items:

• Permitted uses limited to a home for the aged and church-related expansion or activities that allowed in the R-6 district;

A maximum of 118 units and 118 beds;
Exterior materials to include brick veneer, EIFS, vinyl with 0.046" minimum thickness, and/or cementitious siding;

Fifty percent of the exterior façade to be brick veneer;

- A Transitional Buffer 50 adjacent to Elko Road, along a portion of the southern property line, and around the back of the BMP. As you can see, these buffers are outlined in gray on this plan. Around the back of the BMP, a Transitional Buffer 10 around the remaining perimeter of the site;
 - · Conceptual exhibits for entrance signage and perimeter fencing;
 - · Odor mitigation for cooking and laundering;
 - Various road improvements as detailed by the Department of Public Works; and
 - · Interior wall and ceiling sound suppression requirements.

These revised proffers address a variety of issues previously raised in the staff report.

The proposed development is consistent with the 2026 Comprehensive Plan's Semi-Public designation. In addition, because the request is generally residential in character, it could be a reasonable alternative to the site's partial SR1 recommendation in an area with limited housing options of this type for a growing senior population. For these reasons, staff believes this could be an appropriate

use for the site and supports this request.

851

852

853

854

855

856

857

858

859

860

863 864 865

866

867

868

869

871

874

875

876

877

878

879

880 881

883

884 885

886 887

888

890

892

894

This concludes my presentation. I am happy to answer any questions you may have.

Mr. Witte - Does the Commission have any questions?

Mr. Leabough - I have one question, and that's just a point of clarification. In reading the proffers that were provided—and I'm going based off memory, so I may be wrong here—if 50 percent of the building will have either cementitious or EIFS, or the first level will have—and brick—

882 Mr. Humphreys - Let me open to that.

Mr. Leabough - So the first floor will essentially have brick or cementitious siding. And then the second floor will either be cementitious or EIFS and brick. Why are they including vinyl as a potential material when the proffers essentially eliminate it?

889 Mr. Humphreys - Good question.

891 Ms. Moore - Can you pull up the elevations, Seth?

893 Mr. Humphreys - Yes.

Mr. Leabough - The first level there. Brick with cementitious siding above that. Right? Are you trying to zoom in?

898 Mr. Humphreys - Yes.	
899	
	mantitia
900 Mr. Leabough - So on the first level it will be brick and ce	
siding. For the two stories, it will be brick with the upper portion of that	
elevation being brick with a cementitious siding or EIFS. Where would	
go if you're pretty much taken up the whole wall section with the materials?	ose three
905 One Mr. Humphrove That's a good question	
906 Mr. Humphreys - That's a good question.	
908 Mr. Branin - Unless they're trying to put it into windows a	and eaves
909 Offices they re trying to put it into windows a	ilu caves.
910 Mr. Humphreys - It does have the vinyl windows there.	
911	
912 Mr. Branin - But that's not siding.	
913	
914 Mr. Humphreys - They do sometimes have those overhangs	and things
915 done in vinyl. That's a good question for the applicant.	and triingo
916	
917 Mr. Leabough - I just wanted to make sure I wasn't mistaken	1.
918	
919 Ms. Moore - It needs a window for a one-story. I beli	eve that's
where the vinyl could be applied, the sections that are one story.	
921	
922 Mr. Leabough - Cementitious.	
923	
924 Mr. Branin - And brick.	
925	
926 Mr. Witte - Is there shaker siding on the elevation belo	w this? Is
927 that vinyl?	
928	
929 Mr. Leabough - That's probably a question for the applic	ant, more
930 appropriate for the applicant. But I just wanted to make sure that I of	lidn't miss
something when I saw vinyl and I heard it in your presentation.	
932	
933 Mr. Humphreys - Right. And we have had several iterations	s of these
proffers, so that may be something that was just overlooked.	
935	
, e e	
936 Mr. Leabough - Okay.	
936 Mr. Leabough - Okay. 937	
936 Mr. Leabough - Okay. 937 938 Mr. Humphreys - If that becomes an issue, that's somethin	
936 Mr. Leabough - Okay. 937	
936 Mr. Leabough - Okay. 937 938 Mr. Humphreys - If that becomes an issue, that's somethin	

Mr. Witte - Any other questions? How would you like to proceed?

945 Mr. Leabough - I'd like to hear from Mr. Davis first.

947 Mr. Witte - Mr. Davis, you have the floor.

958 .

Mr. Davis - Thank you. Mark Davis. I live at 6425 Elko Road. I appreciate the opportunity to speak before the Planning Commission. I'm not opposed to the project. What I would like to see that I don't see in the review by the Planning group is two things. One is a noise review for how this will impact the adjacent property owners. My concern is that other activities that may occur because this will be a large facility at one point, unloading and other things may impact the residential properties adjoining it. And since when I looked at the buffers, I'm not an engineer in that regard, so my thinking would be to request that the Planning Commission add an additional requirement to make sure that this operation would not affect adjacent property owners, especially the residential people.

The second thing is water planning. A couple days ago, for those who read the paper, you saw the Virginia DEQ report on water planning for the state of Virginia. A lot of impervious surface is going to go in for this particular area. There is a lot of impervious surface planned for our area in the Elko Road area, including the Technology Park and other operations. That is going to have an effect on recharging of the aquifers.

Most of my neighbors, most of the property owners that surround that area are not on public water; they're on well. Since the second requirement that I would like for the Planning Commission to consider is a groundwater study, whether it's part of this project or whether it's part of an overall project to look at that area. My concern is that as we continue to change the topography and as we continue to manage stormwater runoff, are we going to be recharging the aquifers or are my neighbors five years or ten years down the road going to end up with either a water quality issue, meaning that their water becomes contaminated, or are they going to end up with pumping their water out of their wells one day because the aquifer is not being recharged.

So I'm not opposed to the project. I think it's a good project for the area. I think it's a good fit. I just think some additional through should be given to those items. That's all I have. Thank you for your time.

Mr. Witte - Any questions for Mr. Davis? Thank you, sir.

985 Mr. Leabough - Would the applicant please come forward?

	987 988 989 990		Good evening. My name is Steve Smith, and I evelopers. We're excited about the opportunity here to develop this senior living facility.
	991 992 993 994 995 996	of the proffers. I believe to There may be—we're just might have some vinyl.	those materials, you're right; we had several variations he soffit area underneath is definitely going to be vinyl. It not sure about the material. But those shaker areas But I think in general you could probably assume that y vinyl as far as siding, per se. So that would be the
	998 999	Mr. Leabough - would just eliminate vinyl	So you go to the extent of putting cementitious—I altogether.
	1000 1001 1002	Mr. Smith -	We could definitely just strike that.
	1002 1003 1004 1005	Mr. Branin - in the siding category.	The eaves and the trim wouldn't be considered vinyl
	1003 1006 1007 1008	Mr. Smith - eliminate the term <i>vinyl sid</i>	Okay. Yes, I agree, I agree. So we could just ding.
)	1008	Mr. Witte -	You said the soffits are going to vinyl?
	1011 1012	Mr. Smith - consider that in the finishe	Mmm-hmm. But I believe normally you wouldn't really es anyway as far as the look or the image or anything.
	1013 1014 1015	Mr. Witte - soffits for fire spread purp	I just know that the Fire Department is opposing vinyl oses.
	1016	Mr. Branin -	That's a valid point.
	1018 1019 1020	Mr. Smith -	Do you want to talk on that, Terry?
	1020 1021 1022 1023 1024 1025 1026	Fire Department. We have We can put a hard siding	Absolutely. I'm Terry Bailey with O'Brien Construction. We're going meet whatever the requirements are of the e used vinyl soffit material, perforated, for a long time. there and cut in vents. There are many different ways g to work with the Fire Department and the staff to have
	1027 1028 1029	Mr. Witte -	Thank you.
)	1030 1031 1032	Mr. Leabough - raised regarding noise. A mistaken. So you could a	Could you speak to the questions that Mr. Davis lot of that sounded like operational concerns, if I'm not ddress those?

1033		The second secon
1034	Mr. Smith -	Just the nature of what we're doing, there's not going
1035		ated anyway. But how I could reassure the community,
1036		could do that. I know that there is a school right down
1037		hat I'm sure is a lot louder than what we would ever
1038	generate. And that might b	be one of the reasons for his concern.
1039		
1040		m open to some suggestions. I'm not sure I can set a
1041	decibel amount of-	
1042		
1043	Mr. Leabough -	I don't think he's talking about the seniors. I think he's
1044	talking about delivery truck	s for food service, dumpsters for refuse service.
1045		
1046	Mr. Smith -	In that case, we're definitely limiting. And we have in
1047		and the activity and things with dumpsters and things
1048	of that nature. So that wou	lld be during the normal working hours.
1049		
1050	Mr. Leabough -	Do you mind pointing us to that because I don't
1051		e referring to are hours of construction and days of
1052	construction. I don't see an	nything regarding operations.
1053		
1054	Mr. Smith -	Okay.
1055		
1056	Mr. Branin -	There are no proffers in it. In a lot of cases here in
1057		itting something—even though this would fit into a
1058		trend we're seeing is that most assisted livings want to
1059		sort of setting, with that, I know this gentleman doesn't
1060	nave a dumpster truck con	ning to his house to pick up a dumpster at 6 a.m.
1061	Mr. Smith -	Dight right
1062	WII. SITIILII -	Right, right.
1063	Mr. Branin -	And he descrit have a tractor trailer other than
1064 1065		And he doesn't have a tractor-trailer—other than ing to his house at 5:00 in the morning to do a delivery
1066	with backup alarms.	ing to his house at 5.50 in the morning to do a delivery
1067	with backup alaims.	
1068	Mr. Smith -	Right.
1069	Wil. Officer	ragit.
1070	Mr. Branin -	You thought I forgot you from that case, didn't you?
1070		hings that you need to try to reflect, setting hours of no
1071		the hours of midnight and 7 a.m. or Monday through
1072		unday; no delivery trucks between the hours of—.
1074	ay, no calarady and o	anday, no dontory adole between the floure of—.
1075	Mr. Smith -	Yes, I supposed we could just adjust the proffers to
1076		dvantages is that natural buffer, of course. There are
1077		nat's going to help the sound as well.
1078		0 0 11 11-1 1-1 11-1 11-1 11-1 11-1 11-

Do you mind pulling up the site plan, Mr. Humphreys? Mr. Leabough -1079 1080 I would imagine that you're probably going to be doing the bulk of that behind the building? I'm not imagining that you're going to do your deliveries in the front of 1081 the building. Where do you imagine the bulk of those deliveries taking place? 1082 Just point to it with the cursor. 1083 1084 Okay. Well, it's probably going to be coming right in 1085 Mr. Smith here. See where my hand is? It's going to be in this area because this is where 1086 the kitchen and things are coming in. The kitchen is right in here. This is all of the 1087 1088 memory care are, so it would not be up here. It would be in this area. 1089 1090 Mr. Leabough -So further away from the road and where the trees 1091 are, what you were talking about, the buffer area. 1092 1093 Mr. Smith -Right, right. 1094 1095 Mr. Leabough -Okay. 1096 Mr. Smith -1097 The only way to get in there is right here. So the good thing is, is the way this building is configured is the movement of goods and all is 1098 going to be right in this area here. So there would be a building between them. 1099 But you're right; you have to actually get the vehicle in there. 1100 1101 1102 Mr. Leabough -So backup beepers, potentially, which is a concern I'm sure you have. 1103 1104 Mr. Davis -[Off microphone.] Can I clarify my question? 1105 1106 You can't do it from there. You understand the 1107 Mr. Branin process; you're a veteran. 1108 1109 Mr. Davis -I'm Mark Davis again. My question really is is that I've 1110 been reading the studies by the Planning group. It's really, to me, a procedural 1111 thing that I don't see in any of these a noise evaluation. Of any of these projects, 1112 1113 not just this gentleman's. I see it mentioned, but what I don't see is a systematic or scientific method to evaluate the noise impacts on adjacent property owners. 1114 That's really what I'm asking this group to think about. I'm not saying it has to be 1115 1116 done for this one, because if his truck deliveries are truly on the front side of the road, then I don't think the residential property owners behind him would be 1117 affected from those operations. And I'm assuming most likely because of his 1118 clientele he's going to be having those normal business hours, you know, 9 to 5, 1119 whatever that's going to be for his operation. Unless there's some emergency 1120 need on the weekends, he's not going to have staff unloading trucks, etc. 1121

April 9, 2015 25 Planning Commission

What I'm really asking is for the Planning group and the Board to think about making sure that on projects like this that some measure of what noise impact

1122 1123

are going to have to adjacent property owners. As you well know to your other reference, we have been dramatically affected by another project in the area with noise occurring. In this case, he's actually having to ask for rezoning of the property, if I understand the process correctly. So this Board has an opportunity to require some additional things if they believe it's necessary. I'm not saying it is for this, and I'm really just trying to say something technically should be done to look at this process so that we as residents, regardless of where we live in the County, get some measure of that this is something in the process.

Did that clarify it or did I leave you—?

Mr. Leabough - I'm curious as to—and this is a question for staff. This is a residential use. It's not a commercial use, if you will. But they do have operations there. Do you know offhand how many deliveries you would get in given day? Do you have a way to estimate that? Or what's the typical—and I say that because Mr. Davis is impacted by a much larger facility. So this, in my opinion, is a significant departure from that. So do you have an idea of how many deliveries?

Mr. Smith - So what do you think, Terry, a couple—

Mr. Bailey - I would think that the trash would be no more than twice a week. And we can control that. As far as food services and things like that, I don't see huge trucks coming in. I see bobtail trucks coming in. And I don't see a great deal of noise there. And they'll stop like Steve was talking about, in areas that—it's probably going to be around behind and buffered. And then of course you have all the trees and everything on one side. And too, the area, if it's on the face side of the building, if there are services that take place there, it's still quite a distance from Elko Road. And we'll do some landscaping up in the very front with evergreen trees and things like that.

Mr. Smith - But as far as the number of times, I would think more than three times a week, as far as stocking the food and the essentials.

Mr. Bailey - There could be some other equipment and goods and things like that. So there will be some services that will come. But I think the biggest you'll probably see would be a bobtail truck. I think there will vans that would come in, and just general traffic. This is not going to generate very much traffic just because of the type of product it is.

Mr. Branin - Mr. Chairman, if I may. Mr. Davis, I think you made reference—and you can correct me if I'm wrong. You made reference to this project, but what you're also asking this Commission and/or Board is to have more focus—because of a recent experience you've endured—on more scientific means of looking at sound issues with all projects.

1171 Mr. Davis - Correct. That's really what I'm asking. I'm not picking on this gentleman because I think his project is good.

Mr. Branin - And you have to appreciate when we're covering a case, our focus is on that case. What you wanted a broad—and I got it, and I agree, and I think we should look into it, as well as the water.

Mr. Davis - And also in this case though, he just happens to be in my area—sorry. So when I read the document, it leaves me as a Henrico resident wondering why—not picking on him—we're not looking at issues that ultimately will affect us down the road because water quality and water quantity certainly is an issue for all of us who lives on wells. So his project potentially does have an impact of 8-1/2 acres. I didn't calculate the impervious surface for that. I looked at his stormwater stuff. I'm not a stormwater or groundwater engineer, but those projects accumulatively over time—and his is the first one that I believe the Board has an opportunity to say whether or not something should be evaluated or not. In the other case, things were already rezoned; there was little the Board could do.

But I'm really asking that this project look at those issues more than what's been done in this planning review because the project will have an impact. How much, I don't know. But when I read this document, I can't see that as a Henrico County resident. Thank you.

Mr. Branin - Good. Got it. Yes sir.

Mr. Archer - Mr. Chairman, may I ask a question?

1199 Mr. Leabough - Please.

Mr. Archer - I see revised proffer 21 that speaks to sound suppression that you have proffered a minimum sound coefficient rating of 55, which is pretty standard what we do for interior walls. But I think what happens often is we tend to overlook the residents who will occupy this building, and they need to be able to enjoy some peace and quiet also. Is there a way that you could proffer—and we're not supposed to suggest proffers, but could you suggest one wherein not just the interior walls but the exterior walls could have a sound coefficient so as to protect the value of living for the people who reside there? And you may have intended that all along, but that does not speak to it.

Mr. Smith - The sound coefficient for the exterior wall is going to be greater than the interior anyway because of it being a brick veneer and the mass of the structure.

Mr. Archer - I only mention that because this proffer doesn't speak to it. If it's going to be greater than, then the problem has solved itself.

1217 1218	Mr. Smith -	Or we could say "greater than." That's fine.
1219	Wir. Offiliar	of we could day groater than. That o line.
1220 1221	Mr. Archer -	I can't suggest it, but you can, sir. Fair enough.
1222	Mr. Smith -	All right.
1223	Mr. Lookovek	One other question. The concerns about noise. Even
1224 1225 1226		nave a limited schedule of deliveries, but the hours. Are me frame for deliveries consistent with what your hours
1227 1228	of construction are?	
1229	Mr. Smith -	Sure, absolutely. I don't have a problem with that. So pecified there on construction?
1230 1231	what are nours that we sp	decined there on construction?
1232 1233	Mr. Leabough -	I think it was like 10 to 2.
1234	Mr. Smith -	No, I don't think so.
1235	Mr. Lankausk	No. 14
1236 1237	Mr. Leabough -	No. It was 7 a.m. to 6 p.m.
1238	Mr. Smith -	Oh yes, yes. Yes, we could do that. We can proffer
1239	that.	
1240		
1241 1242	Mr. Branin - Saturdays and Sundays is	And then with deliveries or with trash pickup, no s generally what we see with—
1243		
1244 1245	Mr. Smith -	Yes. Yes.
1245	Mr. Branin -	—with that.
1247	Wii. Diamii	With that.
1248	Mr. Smith -	Yes, that's fair, absolutely.
1249 1250	Mr. Witte -	Do we have any other questions?
1250	Will. VVIIIC -	bo we have any other questions:
1252	Mr. Leabough -	With no other questions, I'd like to thank staff and
1253	•	had a large community meeting for this case. I don't
1254		were there. There were so many people I couldn't
1255	remember.	
1256		
1257	Mr. Smith -	[Off microphone.] Forty to forty-five.
1258		
1259 1260	Mr. Leabough -	It was more than that, I thought.
1261 1262	Mr. Smith - Probably a total of about s	[Off microphone.] There were probably [inaudible]. seventy-five.

Mr. Leabough - Seventy-five, yes. So there was a good crowd there. The applicant presented their case, and no one stood up in opposition. So it seems like this is a welcomed use. One of the things I asked staff before we met with the community was—we asked for number in terms of assisted living facilities. They're not nursing homes; they're places for people to age in place. And one of the things that we recognize is that there is no assisted living facility, senior community, if you will, in the Varina District at all other than a couple of options here or there. I don't think there were many at all. So this is a huge opportunity, I think, for people that live in Varina that want to stay in Varina, but still age in place.

With that, I move that REZ2014-00040 Steve Smith for Antioch Plan Developers, LLC, move forward to the Board of Supervisors with a recommendation of approval subject to the conditions that we discussed in terms of trash pickup, hours of deliveries, things of that nature, as well as the removal of the vinyl as potential siding material, and additional conditions 1 through 21.

Ms. Jones - Second.

Mr. Witte - We have a motion by Mr. Leabough and a second by Ms. Jones. All in favor say aye. All opposed say no. The ayes have it; the motion passes.

 REASON - Acting on a motion by Mr. Leabough, seconded by Ms. Jones, the Planning Commission voted 5-0 (one abstention) to recommend the Board of Supervisors **grant** the request because it would not adversely affect the adjoining area if properly developed as proposed and the proffered conditions will provide appropriate quality assurances not otherwise available.

Mr. Davis, thank you for your input.

Ms. Moore - Mr. Chairman, the next case in on page 2 of your agenda on the top. It's REZ2014-00007. This will also be presented by Mr. Humphreys.

REZ2015-00007 Ralph L. "Bill" Axselle, Jr. & T. Preston Lloyd, Jr. for Elko II, LLC: Request to conditionally rezone from A-1 Agricultural District to M-2C General Industrial District (Conditional) part of Parcel 845-706-5092 containing 46.045 acres located on the north line of Technology Boulevard at its intersection with Techpark Place. The applicant proposes a warehouse/distribution center with office. The uses will be controlled by zoning ordinance regulations and proffered conditions. The 2026 Comprehensive Plan recommends Office/Service.

1308 1309	Mr. Witte - Is there any opposition to REZ2015-00007, Ralph L. "Bill" Axselle, Jr. & T. Preston Lloyd, Jr., for Elko II, LLC? Noted.
1310	
1311	Mr. Humphreys - Thank you Mr. Chairman, members of the
1312	Commission.
1313	Commodion.
1314	This is a request to rezone 46.045 acres from A-1 Agricultural to M-2C General
1314	Industrial (Conditional) to construct a distribution warehouse and office. Only the
1316	southern half of the parcel is included in the request, leaving the wooded
	northern half undeveloped.
1317	northern hall undeveloped.
1318	Surrounding uses include:
1319	Surrounding uses include.
1320	the VDOT Meterials I shite the cost (zened M.2):
1321	 the VDOT Materials Lab to the east (zoned M-2); the QTS Data Center, U.S. Postal Service, Health Diagnostic
1322	
1323	Laboratory, and Aramark to the south (all M-2C);
1324	vacant A-1 property and U.S. Postal Service (M-1C) to the west; and
1325	A-1 zoned, large-lot residential properties to the north. The closest
1326	residence is 837 feet to the north.
1327	The cooperation of the programment of the Consider a cotton which
1328	The 2026 Comprehensive Plan recommends Office/Service, a category which
1329	includes warehousing and office uses. The parcel is also part of Prime Economic
1330	Development Site #27 which further encourages economic development of the
1331	property.
1332	D # 1 T 1 11 1 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
1333	Proffered Exhibit 1 shows a 198,000-square-foot building for Phase 1. That's
1334	183,000 square feet of warehouse and a 15,000-square-foot footprint for a two-
1335	story, 30,000-square-foot office area.
1336	
1337	This is the proffered exterior elevation for the office portion.
1338	
1339	A potential 90,000-square-foot Phase 2 eastward expansion is also illustrated.
1340	Two points of access would be provided on Technology Boulevard. The primary
1341	full access would be across from Techpark Place and a right-in/right-out access
1342	further west.
1343	
1344	The master plan also includes three retention ponds, 344 standard parking
1345	spaces, 28 parking spaces for a fleet of small- to medium-sized box trucks, 8
1346	tractor-trailer receiving bays along the front of the building, and 9 box truck
1347	loading bays at the rear of the warehouse. More bays could be added along the
1348	front and rear of the building to accommodate future expansion.
1349	
1350	Perimeter screening consists of a Transitional Buffer 50 along the northern and
1351	western boundaries, as shown on this exhibit. Minimum 100-foot-wide natural
1352	buffer with supplemental evergreen understory plantings would be provided
1252	along Teichnology Rouleyard

In addition to the proffered conceptual plan and screening assurances, the applicant's revised proffers dated April 2, 2015, which were just distributed, also include:

 Uses limited to those in the M-1 district and an enclosed vehicle storage area as regulated in the M-2 district. All other M-2 uses would be excluded;

 A maximum of two points of access, and only via Technology Boulevard;

 Proffer language and signage directing delivery trucks to exit by turning right to avoid Elko Road;

Access configurations designed to minimize loading bay views;

No speakers to be audible at the property lines; and

Entrance signage details.

The proposed use is consistent with the 2026 Plan designations which encourage economic development on the site. The request is also compatible with adjacent industrial operations and would be well separated and buffered from residential uses to the north. Given these considerations along with the quality and mitigation assurances in the proffers, staff supports this request.

This concludes my presentation. I am happy to answer any questions you may have.

Mr. Witte - Any questions from the Commission? How would you like to proceed, Mr. Leabough?

- 1382 Mr. Leabough -
- I'd like to hear from the opposition, please.

1384 Mr. Witte -

Mr. Davis, the floor is yours.

Mr. Davis - I'm Mark Davis. I live at 6425 Elko Road. I'm not really in opposition to the project. What I have some concerns about is we have another project coming to our neighborhood with additional truck traffic. And I'm seeing that the applicant has agreed to some restrictions on his traffic coming out Technology Boulevard to Route 60. What I didn't see, as I made in a previous point, is that there is no groundwater study with this project. So we have no idea what this impervious surface impact will be to the aquifers that, again, recharge our neighborhood area's wells.

The second thing I don't see is any evaluation other than for the outdoor speaker system for noise at the property line. And I will give you an example. If you Google my house, and you take their wonderful little map program, and you draw a line from my property line to the former Hewlett-Packard, which is now a warehouse distribution center, you come by my house any night you want, and I

can hear the backup alarms. So even though this project, when you look at it, has about the same amount of distance of 890-some feet, give or take whatever you want to say, there is still the potential for this project to have an impact if its operations are in the evening hours. My understanding from the Planning staff is that this zoning would allow a 24/7 operation, theoretically; I'm not saying that they are or aren't. But without some measure of understanding what noise impact they could have to the residents in the surrounding residential areas, I have no way to either endorse the project or not endorse the project.

I'm not opposed to business; I think business needs to come. But I think we need to plan for business so that it does not impact existing property owners and their value of their property.

Just so you know, I went to sell my property on Elko Road. I had a nice, wonderful surprise that I have lost \$12,000 in my real estate value due to my new neighbor up the road. I don't know if any of my other neighbors have been impacted. So I have physical evidence. Had my house appraised. Had two real estate agents out. And it is \$12,000 less than what the County currently appraises my property. So I am, in essence, a direct impact of what I would view as not planning out long-term impact of potential things to residential areas.

 I think the project is fine. The note that I do kind of find funny as a resident is that there is more screening and buffer from Technology Boulevard, which is a business entrance, than there is from adjacent property owners, than the residential areas. Now I realize there are woods already there and it's an A-1 area. But when you read this, it comes across to me as we're more concerned about somebody driving down a business entrance and looking over and seeing the business than we are about other property owners around that are not businesses. Just a footnote.

I appreciate your time and consideration. Again, I think it's a good project, but I think these issues are not addressed in this Planning staff report.

Mr. Branin - I want to start by saying thank you. Thank you for coming in. You bring up two valid, valid points, especially for this area. I know I will be calling Jeff Perry. Have you spoken to anyone from our Environmental Department?

1438 Mr. Davis - No, I have not. I'm not sure who to speak to.

1440 Mr. Branin - I will be talking to Jeff Perry tomorrow.

1442 Mr. Davis - Is that P-e-r-r-y?

Mr. Branin - Yes. And finding out what we can do to get better studies so that when cases are coming through what preventative measures we

1446 1447	can take even further than to be addressed tomorrow	n what we are doing now. We hear you. And it will start v.
1448 1449 1450	Mr. Davis -	Okay.
1450 1451 1452 1453 1454 1455		Having been through this process once or twice re'll also—no matter where this case goes with zoning eferred or whatever, you know that POD is when we bolts-
1456 1457	Mr. Davis -	Sure, I understand that.
1458 1459 1460	Mr. Branin - through this, some other p But you know we'll be divis	—and the detail portion. Because you've been beople might think wait, they're not really addressing it. ng deep.
1461 1462 1463 1464 1465 1466		Yes, you'll get to the details down the road. I just want the big picture right now. And then when the Planning ok at things, maybe there can be some more attention
1467 1468	Mr. Branin - part. Absolutely.	Environmental should definitely be playing a bigger
1469 1470 1471	Mr. Witte -	Any other questions?
1472 1473	Mr. Archer -	Mr. Davis, may I ask you a question?
1474 1475	Mr. Davis -	Yes sir.
1476 1477 1478 1479		I want to ask you because you seem to know these tokup monitors making noise that you can hear at your here is a minimum decibel requirement from OSHA—
1480 1481 1482	Mr. Davis - OSHA standards, 1910. I	That would be in the OSHA standards. Yes, the used to do safety—
1483 1484	Mr. Archer -	I knew you'd know that.
1485 1486	Mr. Davis - have to go and look it up.	But I don't know the actual decibel alarm number; I'd But yes sir, it is.
1487 1488 1489	Mr. Archer - equipped with noise—	So it could be these vehicles are just randomly

1491 Mr. Davis -I would say probably not because that's pretty standardized in a fleet vehicle. I work for a Fortune 500 company who has a 1492 distribution center as big as Lumber Liquidators. But we're in a very residential 1493 area, and we bought up all the land around us to avoid some of the issues. But 1494 that's neither here nor there. So those are pretty standard when you buy a truck 1495 intended—whether it's a 22-foot trailer or whether you're buying a tractor-trailer, 1496 that noise is intended to be at a set decibel so that it's heard over normal 1497 operations so that employees don't end up with some unintended consequences. 1498 And those cannot be adjusted because that's a federal standard. And I 1499 understand that. I'm just letting you know that even 890 feet doesn't give you a 1500 measure of sound reduction that you would think. And that's my reason of bringing it up before this and the Planning Commission that I experience that today. 1503

1504

1501

1502

Mr. Archer -1505 Right.

1506

Mr. Davis -And I know that's not their intent; it's a part of 1507 operations. 1508

1509

Mr. Archer -I understand. And it's a very antagonizing noise, but I 1510 guess it's intended to be. 1511

1512

Mr. Davis -It's intended to be because you don't want to be 1513 under the trailers. 1514

1515

Mr. Archer -Thank you, sir. 1516

1517

Thank you. Appreciate your time. 1518 Mr. Davis -

1519

Mr. Leabough -1520 Would the applicant please come forward?

1521

Mr. Axselle -1522 Mr. Chairman and members of the Board, Bill Axselle 1523 on behalf of the applicant. With me is Preston Lloyd in our office. Also with us is Brian Felton of Liberty Properties and Dale Farino of Associated Distributors, 1524 1525 which will be the occupant of this facility.

1526 1527

1528

1529

1530 1531

1532

1533

A couple of cases ago, I was going to say I can assure this case will not have a math test like you went through here in an earlier case. It's a fairly straightforward case. This is in Technology Boulevard. It's a commercial/industrial area. We invited all of the adjoining and adjacent property owners. We had four people show up. Only one of them was a neighbor who was there on behalf of his neighbors, and they were supportive. We had a good discussion. It was a presentation, but it actually was more of a discussion among everybody there. Mr. Leabough was there, as well as representatives of the Planning office.

Everybody accepted the concept, then we worked through the terms and conditions of the proffers. And so that's why you see that we worked all of that out, hopefully, beforehand.

A couple of questions or comments. The 800-and-some feet is from the building site, it is not from the—from the property line—from the rezoning line to the homes is over 1,000. Some of them were 1100 feet. And it's all woods. It's wetlands, it's treed. And so, like I said, the two most immediate neighbors indicated they had no problems there. The noise is addressed as set forth in the proffers, as is everything else.

One thing I would point out is proffer #3. We have gone out of our way to provide that the ingress and egress to the property shall only be via Technology Boulevard. There will be two entrances and exits. One is the main one and it is configured in such a fashion that it will facilitate the incoming and going out, but it also is to shield the tractors and trucks from the front. The other one is to the left of the screen, and that is a right-in/right-out. So as your delivery trucks come out of there, they must go right, which is towards Williamsburg Road. Also, on both exit points, there is signage that they must go to the right. That's in response to, quite frankly, the problems we're all familiar with from an earlier case.

I'll respond to any questions you have, but I'd like to ask Frank Wilson of McKinney and Company, who is the engineer, who can address the issue of stormwater management and so forth. He knows those details better than I. Frank?

Mr. Wilson - Mr. Chairman, members of the Planning Commission, my name is Frank Wilson. I'm with McKinney and Company. I'm the civil engineer. Our company has done the plan of development, which was actually submitted this afternoon. Part of what we've done is address the stormwater issues. They always are major issues for big developments. Since July of last year, the state has implemented new regulations that are very much more stringent when it comes to water quality and water quantity management.

Essentially, the way this site has been designed, we have very, very few storm drain pipes. On the west, the north, and the east side, stormwater leaving the site basically sheds off into side ditches, grass ditches that run into a stormwater management pond.

On the north side is a wet pond, on the south side there is a wet pond, and then there is also a smaller dry pond on the north side. So the water that actually leaves this site all goes into stormwater ponds. On the north side, the water that ultimately leaves these ponds goes into a wetland where it will recharge the aquifer. And while the water is in the ponds—they are unlined ponds—the water is able to infiltrate into the underground water system.

On the south side of the building, the Technology Boulevard side, there are some short lengths of storm drain pipe to get the water into that pond, which is also an unlined wet pond. And for major storm situations, the water would overflow and run into an existing stream.

So we believe that the stormwater that lands on this site, even on the impervious areas, ultimately goes into receiving systems that enable the water to be infiltrated into the ground. So we believe that that's an effective way of taking care of stormwater quality and, of course, quantity as well. That's how we've designed that system.

Mr. Witte - Does the Commission have any questions?

1595 Mr. Leabough - I think noise was another question that was raised, 1596 and I don't know if it was—I think it was addressed partially by the distance to the 1597 homes. Could you all speak to that more definitively?

Mr. Axselle - It is addressed in one of the proffers, in particularly #7. This was worked out with the staff about no outside speakers can be heard from—adjacent properties shall be permitted on the property. No outdoor public address paging or speaker system outside any building other than an intercom system which is not audible on the property line. So those sounds cannot leave the property line for those purposes.

And then, of course, you do have the fact that at the front of this property across Technology Boulevard is an industrial/commercial area. To this side of it, if you will, is the VDOT materials plant. And behind it, it's over 1,000 feet of trees and wetlands separating it.

Mr. Leabough - Can you speak to noise from an operational standpoint as well in terms of truck movement, truck loading and unloading, and so on and so forth?

Mr. Axselle - In a nutshell—and Dale, correct me if I'm wrong—basically the over-the-road tractor-trailers, a limited number of those come in. They back up and unload into the warehouse area. And then the local box trucks, which are the area-type delivery trucks, they come in and they're placed on the other side of the facility. They are loaded, again, face to face with the warehouse during the night. That's internal. And so what happens is, when the drivers come in in the morning, they have a truck, it's already loaded, and it is to go out and go to the people on their routes. In the evening when they come back, they come back in, and the same process continues.

So there will be truck movement, as you would anticipate in an industrial/commercial area. But the loading and unloading is done, as I said, face-to-face with the warehouse.

,	1628			
	1629	Mr. Leabough -	Okay. So how many trips or tractor trucks a day would	
	1630	you estimate?		
	1631			
	1632	Mr. Axselle -	Preston, you have that.	
	1633			
	1634	Mr. Lloyd -	Mr. Chairman, members of the Commission, Preston	
	1635	Lloyd with Williams Muller	n. There are approximately 28 to 32 box trucks, which	
	1636		very trucks that Mr. Axselle mentioned. There would be	
	1637	• •	inbound tractor-trailers within that cycle that was	
	1638	described.		
	1639			
	1640		Okay. So a much smaller number than the previous	
	1641	case that we've been men	tioning and referring to.	
	1642			
	1643	Mr. Lloyd -	Yes sir.	
	1644			
	1645		Okay. Mr. Axselle. Noise continues to be a concern.	
	1646		per of times with a number of cases, especially in	
	1647		case we've been talking about. I'm not saying that we	
	1648	have to address it now, but I would like to get a commitment that at POD we can		
	1649	look at the noise issue further and address it through potential landscaping		
)	1650	opportunities that may pre	sent themselves. Is that something that we could do?	
	1651			
	1652	Mr. Axselle -	Yes, we can. I think we anticipated being able to do	
	1653	that. We don't think that this is going to provide any noise issues because of the		
	1654	area that it's in; nowever, v	we will be glad to discuss that at POD.	
	1655	Ma Lashavah	If there are wave as atrataging to writingto as leaves	
	1656	•	If there are ways or strategies to mitigate or lessen	
	1657 1658	the impact, I think we shou	did look at triat.	
	1659	Mr. Axselle -	Okay.	
	1660	IVII. AXSEIIE -	Chay.	
	1661	Mr. Leabough -	So can I get you to agree—	
	1662	Wii. Ecabougii	oo can'i got you to agroo	
	1663	Mr. Axselle -	Yes.	
	1664	/ 5.00.10		
	1665	Mr. Leabough -	—that we could look at that at POD?	
	1666			
	1667	Mr. Axselle -	Yes.	
	1668			
	1669	Mr. Leabough -	If this is approved. I should preface it with that.	
	1670			
	1671	Mr. Axselle -	Thank you.	
	1672			
	1673	Mr. Leabough -	Thank you, sir.	

1674 Any other questions. Mr. Leabough? 1675 Mr. Witte -1676 I get all the fun tonight, I see. This was a tough case 1677 Mr. Leabough for me, especially in light of the previous case that I shall not name. But it's a 1678 good case. I think the applicant has been more than amenable in terms of trying 1679 to work with staff and work with myself and the concerns that were raised as a 1680 result of the POD—not the rezoning—that we have experienced some concerns 1681 about. It looks like it's a less intense use—a significantly less intense use. And 1682 given that, there are a number of other industrial type or distribution-type facilities 1683 in the area. It's consistent with that. Staff supports the request. 1684 1685 I move that REZ2015-00007, Ralph L. "Bill" Axselle, Jr. & T. Preston Lloyd, Jr. for 1686 Elko II, LLC, move forward to the Board of Supervisors with a recommendation of 1687 approval subject to conditions 1 through 14 as noted in the proffers that were 1688 distributed tonight. 1689 1690 Ms. Jones -Second. 1691 1692 We have a motion by Mr. Leabough, a second by Mr. Witte -1693 Mrs. Jones. All in favor say aye. All opposed say no. The ayes have it; the motion 1694 passes. 1695 1696 Acting on a motion by Mr. Leabough, seconded by **REASON -**1697 Ms. Jones, the Planning Commission voted 5-0 (one abstention) to recommend 1698 the Board of Supervisors grant the request because it is appropriate industrial 1699 zoning in this area and the employment use supports the County's economic 1700 development policies. 1701 1702 Mr. Chairman, moving into the Tuckahoe District on Ms. Moore -1703 page 2 of your agenda, we have PUP2015-0004. This is Andrew Muhammad for 1704 L.I.M. Enterprises, LLC, doing business as Anytime Fitness. This will be 1705 presented by Billy Moffett. 1706 1707 PUP2015-00004 Andrew Muhammad for L.I.M. Enterprises, 1708 LLC/DBA Anytime Fitness: Request for a Provisional Use Permit under 1709 Sections 24-58.2(a), 24-120 and 24-122.1 of Chapter 24 of the County Code in 1710 order to allow 24-hour operation of an existing fitness facility on part of Parcel 1711 737-742-5676 located in the northwest guadrant of Patterson Avenue (State 1712 Route 6) and Lauderdale Drive (Tuckahoe Village Shopping Center). The 1713 existing zoning is B-2 Business District. The 2026 Comprehensive Plan 1714 recommends Commercial Concentration. 1715 1716

April 9, 2015

Mr. Witte -

none. Mr. Moffett.

1717

1718 1719 Is there any opposition to PUP2015-00004? I see

Mr. Moffett -Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members of the 1720 Commission. 1721 1722 This request is for a Provisional Use Permit to allow for extended hours of 1723 operation for Anytime Fitness, an existing fitness facility in the Tuckahoe Village 1724 shopping center. The shopping center occupies 11.18 acres, and the tenant 1725 space for the proposed fitness facility is approximately 4,800 square feet in size. 1726 The site is located on the north line of Patterson Avenue (State Route 6) at its 1727 intersection with Lauderdale Drive and is zoned B-2 Business District. 1728 Businesses in B-2 districts are allowed to operate from 6:00 a.m. to 12:00 1729 midnight, and extended hours of operation are allowed with approval of a 1730 provisional use permit. 1731 1732 Excuse me. Mr. Moffett. I believe I misstated the Mr. Witte -1733 case. I believe it was PUP2014-00004. 1734 1735 Mr. Moffett -Correct. 1736 1737 Is there any opposition to that? My apologies. Mr. Witte -1738 1739 Continue. 1740 2026 Mr. Moffett -The Comprehensive 1741 Thank vou. recommends Commercial Concentration for the majority of the site and 1742 Environmental Protection Area for a portion of the parcel on the other side of the 1743 shopping center along Westbriar Drive. It should be noted, that Anytime Fitness 1744 has occupied this location for approximately eight years. 1745 1746 The existing pattern of development along this portion of Patterson Avenue 1747 consists of small-scale commercial and office uses and several residential 1748 subdivisions. In this area, no business has approval for 24-hour operation. The 1749 applicant has submitted detailed information regarding the operation of the 1750 existing facility, including details about security measures and operating 1751 procedures. While these details indicate the facility is well run, staff believes the 1752 nature of the proposed 24-hour operation is incompatible with the adjacent 1753 neighborhoods and could set a negative precedent for this area of Patterson 1754 Avenue. For these reasons, staff does not support this request. 1755 1756 I am able to answer any questions you may have for me. 1757 1758 Mr. Witte -Any questions for Mr. Moffett? 1759 1760

1762 1763

1761

1764 1765 Mr. Moffett - No ma'am, not that staff is aware of.

Ms. Jones -

clear. Are there any 24-hour businesses in reasonable proximity to this location?

I just want to make sure that we hear you loud and

1766	Ms. Jones -	There are, however, other areas where B-3 zoning that are in the Tuckahoe District and certainly, I would
1767		business who wishes to operate twenty-four hours;
1768	_	dusiness who wishes to operate twenty-loar hours,
1769	correct?	
1770	Ma Maffatt	Vac ma'am. Two locations approximately 2 to 2 1/2
1771	Mr. Moffett -	Yes ma'am. Two locations approximately 2 to 2-1/2
1772	miles away nave B-3 Zonii	ng which would allow 24-hour operation by right.
1773	Mr. Bress	And there are charries contar legations similar to
1774	Ms. Jones -	And these are shopping center locations similar to
1775	where this location is now	,
1776	NA. NA-66-44	V
1777	Mr. Moffett -	Yes ma'am.
1778	Maria	Oliver I do think that We recomple to note that even
1779 1780		Okay. I do think that it's reasonable to note that even a fact allow 24-hour operations, many businesses that
1781		not to operate on a 24-hour basis simply because the
1782		in, the community that they're in, does not support it or
1783	it wouldn't be appropriate.	So it doesn't mean everything in B-3 operates twenty-
1784	four hours.	
1785		
1786	Mr. Moffett -	Correct.
1787		
1788	Ms. Jones -	They do have that right. Who is here tonight from the
1789	applicant, do you know?	
1790		
1791	Mr. Moffett -	Mr. Muhammad is here.
1792		
1793	Ms. Jones -	Mr. Muhammad is here? Okay, all right. Thank you. I
1794		for Mr. Moffett at the moment, unless someone else
1795	does.	
1796		
1797	Mr. Witte -	Anyone else?
1798		
1799	Ms. Jones -	Okay. It was my understanding from a phone call that
1800		uld be some folks here who wished to address the
1801		an asked for opposition, and it may be that you wish to
1802		ne who wishes to speak, I'd like to hear from you now.
1803		refreshing our memory, Madam Secretary, about the
1804	length of time we have to	taik?
1805	M. Massa	Van loot and middle to make The same
1806	Ms. Moore -	Yes. Just real quickly to recap. The applicant or
1807	•	nutes to present the testimony of their case. Opposition
1808		ulative. And I would imagine if it's for, we can construe
1809		pplicant. But it's separate testimony, so ten minutes
1810	cumulative. The Planning	Commission can extend that time should they choose

to.

1813 Ms. Jones -

I'm happy to hear what you have to say.

Dr. Lieb - I'm Dr. Richard Lieb. My address is 12810 Poplar Forest Drive. And that's in the Tuckahoe District. I'm a member of Anytime Fitness. I've been a member for approximately a year. While I don't use the facilities late at night, there are a number of members who find it necessary to work out after midnight because of job obligations. They're not able to get there any other time. And I think it's unfair to limit those people who have already signed up to be allowed to use the facility after midnight.

The other thing is I don't feel that it's really a 24-hour business the same as a Walgreens that's open to the general public. It's only open to members. And in order to get into the facility—it's actually locked all the time. And to get into the facility, you have to use a special key ring fob that you pass over the door, and it unlocks the door and allows you to get into the facility. And for safety reasons, they request that you use an emergency lanyard so if you happen to be there by yourself and you run into a problem, you can press the lanyard and get help if you need it.

I work out during the day. I'm retired so I don't have a problem with having to go there at night. But there are always people there. The building is locked except when the owner or some of the staff are there; and at that time, there is a door that's open so people who might be interested in looking at the facility or utilizing the facility that don't have the key are allowed to come in and they can sign up. When the staff is gone, you have to have the special key to get into the facility.

It's not really a 24-hour business. I was an endodontist in private practice for twenty-five years. My office had regular hours. But if I had an emergency, I went there at 2:00 in the morning to see the emergency. I mean, it's kind of the same thing.

If anybody has any questions, I'll be glad to answer them.

1846 Ms. Jones - That's fine. Thank you, Dr. Lieb.

Dr. Lieb - Okay, thanks a lot.

1850 Ms. Jones - Anyone else want to address the Commission? Okay, well then I'd like to talk to the applicant.

Mr. Witte - Would the applicant please come forward?

1855 Mr. Muhammad - Good evening. Andrew Muhammad. Thank you for taking the time to consider my application.

Mr. Muhammad, I am happy to hear from Dr. Lieb, Ms. Jones -1858 and there have been a number of folks who have e-mailed the Planning 1859 Department expressing their satisfaction with your business and support of you. 1860 Actually, that makes me very happy. We're all happy when a business is 1861 successful in Henrico. So it is good to hear from folks that you're serving the 1862 patrons well. 1863 1864 I do have a question that actually if this is proprietary information and you choose 1865 not to answer it, that's fine too. But just so I get a bigger picture of your operation, 1866 can you share about how many people you have as members? Is it a large 1867 group? 1868 1869 Eight hundred and ninety-one. Mr. Muhammad -1870 1871 Are these active members of this particular location or Ms Jones -1872 is that Anytime Fitness in the whole area? 1873 1874 Mr. Muhammad -This particular location. 1875 1876 Ms. Jones -Okay. You are a franchisee? 1877 1878 Mr. Muhammad -Yes ma'am. 1879 1880 Okay. Is it possible to give a general idea of how Ms. Jones -1881 many folks are there from midnight to 6 a.m.? 1882 1883 Mr. Muhammad -Less than 5 percent on a weekly basis. 1884 1885 Okay, less than 5 percent. We're doing a lot of math 1886 Ms. Jones tonight, folks. Okay. I got it, I got it. That much I do get. Okay. I did want to ask 1887 about—again, I don't mean to get into proprietary things. But as a franchisee— 1888 obviously, the name is Anytime Fitness. But what are their requirements as far as 1889 your hours? 1890 1891 Mr. Muhammad -To have the facility accessible to its members twenty-1892 four hours a day, which makes it different from other fitness facilities because 1893 part of our service to the community is that there are people who, because of 1894 their schedules, cannot normally attend a fitness center. So we provide that 1895 service by giving them access to the club. We have certain hours of operation in 1896 which we're staffed, but we're not doing business twenty-four hours a day. I think 1897

1902 1903

1898

1899

1900

1901

normally have access.

that is a distinction that should be noted, that after staffed hours, the members

just have access to the club by scanning their key, and the door unlocks and

gives them access to the club. But it's not a lot of traffic after hours, so it's just

giving access to those members that because of their work schedules would not

)	1904 1905	Ms. Jones -	What are your hours of staffing?
	1906 1907	Mr. Muhammad - there, it's staffed and prett	Well, I get there at 4:30 every morning. So, once I get y much until about 5:30 in the afternoon now.
	1908		
	1909 1910	Ms. Jones -	That's a long day.
	1911	Mr. Muhammad -	It's a very long day.
	1912 1913	Mr. Archer -	We're keeping you up.
	1914 1915	Mr. Muhammad -	I've been up since 3 a.m. I'm still going.
	1916 1917 1918	Ms. Jones - That's required by your fra	And so it is certainly your intention to operate 24/7. inchise.
	1919 1920	Mr. Muhammad -	Yes.
	1921 1922 1923	Ms. Jones -	I see.
	1924 1925		And not doing so takes me out of the franchise model. narket and everything. It's what distinguishes us from
)	1926 1927	everyone else.	
	1928 1929	Ms. Jones - since you became—you b	Have you been operating twenty-four hours a day ecame the owner in what year?
	1930	Mr. Muhammad	The and of 2000, early 2010
	1931 1932	Mr. Muhammad -	The end of 2009, early 2010.
	1933 1934	Ms. Jones -	Okay. And you've been operating 24/7 since then.
	1935 1936	Mr. Muhammad - about three years before I	Yes, because it was previously operated like that, for purchased it. It was an existing business.
	1937 1938	Ms. Jones -	And what hours are you open today?
	1939 1940 1941	Mr. Muhammad -	Today? From 4:30 until about 5:30 p.m.
	1942 1943	Ms. Jones - your members have access	No, not when you were staffing it. What hours did is.
	1944 1945	Mr. Muhammad -	Twenty-four hours.
	1946 1947	Ms. Jones -	Twenty-four hours today.
ķ.	1948		

April 9, 2015 43 Planning Commission

Yes, since I purchased it, it's been operating like that.

Mr. Muhammad -

1950		
1951	Ms. Jones -	As we speak. Okay.
1952		
1953	Mr. Muhammad -	I just want to clarify something. When I purchased the
1954	business, it was already o	perating like that. And I think on the application when it
1955	asked operating hours, I w	vas under the impression that those were staffing hours
1956	and not hours where men	nbers would just access to the club, so, I just followed
1957	the template of the previou	us owner.
1958		
1959	Ms. Jones -	I will tell you that on your application in 2010 when
1960	you signed your name to t	he application saying that you declared that these were
1961	true, full, correct, and cor	nplete statements, and then of course you listed your
1962	hours as 10 a.m. to 8 p.m.	
1963		
1964	Mr. Muhammad -	Right.
1965		
1966	Ms. Jones -	What you're telling me right now-first time I'm
1967		a mistake on your part. You misinterpreted what they
1968		ounty reviewers looked at that and felt, rightly so, that
1969		rights to operate on those hours in the B-2 district. You
1970		you just told me, to operate this on anything other than
1971		hat was the requirement as a franchisee.
1972		
1973	Mr. Muhammad -	Correct.
1974		
1975	Ms. Jones -	Okay.
1976		
1977 ·	Mr. Muhammad -	And I just want to note that about fifteen feet away
1978	from the facility to my left	is a 24-hour carwash. I don't know whether that makes
1979	a difference or not, but peo	ople use it all times of the night.
1980		
1981	Ms. Jones -	My understanding is that that carwash has limited
1982	hours that were put in place	e when it was approved.
1983		
1984	Mr. Muhammad -	Okay. I didn't know that. But it's lit and it's active after
1985	hours. People can use it.	
1986		
1987	Ms. Jones -	Up until midnight and then after 6 a.m. are the hours
1988	that are allowed in the B-2	district.
1989		
1990	Mr. Muhammad -	Okay.
1991		
1992	Ms. Jones -	And I can go ahead and get the hours of that
1993		I have them written down right here. But there are
1994	limited hours.	
1995		

As you can see from the plan that's on the monitor, this is an area that's heavily residential. The shopping center caters to the needs of the general community; it's not meant to be high density.

My job right now is to assess your application for a provisional use permit to stay open twenty-four hours a day. You wish to do that; that's your business model. That's the only thing that works with your franchise. And quite honestly, whether or not you meant to mislead the County or misrepresent your business plan or whatever it is, you put yourself into a district that doesn't allow twenty-four hour operation.

I hear from folks that use your business that you operate it well, and I wish you every success. I just cannot have a 24-hour business in a zoning district that does not allow it. And the problem I'm having right now is because we have the area that we do, this precedent-setting issue is not a casual one. If we have a 24-hour business approved for 24-hours, then the next folks in are going to be maybe not as subtle as you are, maybe not as non-impactful as you are. But we can't sit here and pick and choose winners and losers. We have to be true to the zoning code we all operate under.

 What I would suggest to you is that you have the ability to operate up until midnight and then start again at 6 a.m. in your current location. Or there are opportunities to operate a 24-hour business in other zoning districts. I hope that you can find some kind of a solution that will work for you as well as for your patrons because clearly they do appreciate the service you offer. To recommend approval of this PUP to the Board would really counteract a longstanding policy that we have of not allowing 24-hour businesses in this Patterson Avenue corridor simply because it would be too impactful on the residences.

I encourage you to either relocate or try to change your business model, which I would guess you clearly would rather not do. With that in mind, I can't support something that will be an unfortunate precedent with land use and planning principles in place. I simply have to support the existing zoning.

Unless there are other questions from the commission, I'm ready to make a motion to the Board.

Mr. Witte - Any other questions?

Mr. Archer - I just want to ask Mr. Muhammad a question. Have you looked at the possibility of relocating to another area that would accommodate what you need to do?

Mr. Muhammad - I have in the past, and it's just not cost-effective.

Mr. Archer - Do you own the building?

2042		
2043	Mr. Muhammad -	No, it's owned by the Wilton Companies.
2044	CO was Carl	
2045	Mr. Archer -	Okay. That's all I have.
2046		All Cold Mr. James
2047	Mr. Witte -	All right, Ms. Jones.
2048	Ma Janoa	All right I wish you wall and I am sorry that
2049	Ms. Jones -	All right. I wish you well, and I am sorry that not support your request. I will have to move that
2050		Muhammad for L.I.M. Enterprises, LLC/DBA Anytime
2051 2052		to the Board of Supervisors with a recommendation
2052	for denial.	to the Board of Supervisors with a recommendation
2054	loi delliai.	
2055	Mr. Leabough -	Second.
2056	Wir. Edubougii	3333114.
2057	Mr. Witte -	We have a motion by Mrs. Jones, a second by Mr.
2058		aye. All opposed say no. The ayes have it; the motion
2059	passes.	
2060		
2061	REASON -	Acting on a motion by Ms. Jones, seconded by Mr.
2062		Commission voted 5-0 (one abstention) to recommend
2063		s deny the request because the proposed 24 hour
2064		cedent that would adversely impact current and future
2065	uses in the area.	
2066		
2067	Ms. Jones -	Mr. Muhammad, this case will go to the Board of
2068	Supervisors in approximat	ely a month. You may make your case to the Board.
2069	Ma Maran	Mr. Obsiesses the most seen in an agent 2 of years
2070	Ms. Moore -	Mr. Chairman, the next case is on page 2 of your
2071		kland District. It is REZ2014-00050. The applicant is R.
2072	Ms. Rosemary Deemer.	S Development Corporation. This will be presented by
2073 2074	ws. Rosemary Deemer.	
2074	(Deferred from the Marci	h 12 2015 Meeting)
2076	REZ2014-00050	R. Christian Sowers for RCS Development
2077		conditionally rezone from [R-6C] General Residence
2078	•	d R-2 One-Family Residence District to RTHC
2079		District (Conditional) Parcels 768-760-1507, 768-759-
2080		containing 5.432 acres located on the east line of
2081	Hungary Spring Road bet	ween Hungary Road and Old Route 33. The applicant
2082	proposes a residential to	wnhouse development of no more than 30 units. The
2083		imum density of nine (9) units per acre. The use will be
2084		onditions and zoning ordinance regulations. The 2026
2085	-	ommends Suburban Residential 2, density should not
2086	exceed 3.4 units per acre.	

Mr. Witte - Is there any opposition to REZ2014-00050, R. Christian Sowers for RCS Development Corporation? Yes, we have opposition.

Ms. Deemer.

2092 Ms. Deemer - Good evening, Mr. Chairman, members of the 2093 Commission:

As the secretary said, this is a request to rezone 5.432 acres from [R-6C] General Residence District (Conditional) and R-2 One-Family Residence District to RTHC Residential Townhouse District (Conditional) to allow the construction of up to 30 townhouse units at property generally located between Hungary Road and Hungary Spring Road and Old Route 33.

A mix of several different zoning classifications and uses surround the site. To the north are the Laurel Lakes Townhomes, zoned RTHC; to the south are the Lakeland Townes Townhomes, also zoned RTHC. To the east are the Laurel Lakes Condominiums, which are zoned [R-5C], and to the west are single family homes from the Laurel Heights subdivision, zoned R-2.

Originally part of the Laurel Heights subdivision recorded in 1940, the property was zoned R-2, One-Family Residence District, but only two lots were developed in the R-2 district. A portion of the site was rezoned in 1981 to [R-6C] General Residence District (Conditional) to allow offices and financial institutions. However, nothing was ever developed on the rezoned portion of the property.

The Comprehensive Plan recommends Suburban Residential 2 for the subject site. Though not entirely consistent in terms of density and type of residential unit, the proposed use is consistent with the Plan's recommendation for residential use. Given the similar development pattern in the area, the request for townhomes could be appropriate.

The applicant is proposing to develop 30 residential townhouse units, split between six buildings. Primary access would be provided from Hungary Spring Road. Revised proffers, dated April 2, 2015, which were provided to you, address:

- Elevations
- Building materials—full standard brick, stone, Dryvit, vinyl siding, and/or cementitious siding and/or a combination thereof
- Minimum finished floor area of 1,440 square feet
- Landscaping

As the proposed use is generally consistent with the Comprehensive Plan's recommendation for residential uses and the revised proffers are providing assurances of quality development, staff can recommend approval. Staff would

April 9, 2015 47 Planning Commission

2133		or housekeeping details within the proffers that should	
2134	be addressed between now and the Board report.		
2135			
2136	With that, I'd be happy to	answer any questions you may have.	
2137			
2138	Mr. Witte -	Do we have any questions for Ms. Deemer?	
2139			
2140	Ms. Jones -	Yes, I do, actually. The BMP, it's right there at the	
2141	intersection, correct?		
2142			
2143	Ms. Deemer -	Yes ma'am.	
2144			
2145	Ms. Jones -	With the CVS at the corner of Patterson and	
2146	Lauderdale, is it—		
2147			
2148	Ms. Deemer -	Yes, that was my rezoning case many years ago.	
2149	Me. Decine.	, ee, and true my recently care many years age.	
2150	Ms. Jones -	Okay. I thought we were talking-yes. So that's	
2151	basically what you're envi	, , ,	
2152	basically what you is shirt	olorining.	
2153	Ms. Deemer -	I don't know. You'd have to ask the applicant what	
2154		ot sure that they've gotten that far in the process.	
2155	they to envisioning. This he	toute that they ve gotter that far in the process.	
2156	Ms. Jones -	Okay. It's difficult to have that right there at such a	
2157	prominent place. We try h	,	
2158	prominent place. We try in	ard not to.	
2159	Ms. Moore -	And that's a good point, Mrs. Jones, and I believe that	
2160		ant or will be if this goes forward, depending on the	
2161		pically, we have a policy that we don't like to have wet	
2162	71	onds within 25 feet of a certain classified road. And I do	
2163		t might pose some site design issues in the future.	
	tillik tills qualifies. Oo tila	tillight pose some site design issues in the luttire.	
2164	Ms. Deemer -	And it has been put in the staff report to at least let	
2165		that is something that will have to be raised to the	
2166 2167	• •	as well as to County administration.	
	Director of Fublic Works,	as well as to County authinistration.	
2168	Ms. Jones -	Okov	
2169	IVIS. JOHES -	Okay.	
2170	Mr. Mitto	Any other guestiane? Mould the ennecition same	
2171	Mr. Witte -	Any other questions? Would the opposition come	
2172	forward, please, those op	DUSEU.	
2173	Ma Stowart	My name in Comin Stayant I live in Labeland Towns	
2174	Ms. Stewart -	My name is Carrie Stewart. I live in Lakeland Townes.	
2175		y feeling of being a resident there, that there has been	
2176		t in this area. I think I may have offended the Board last	
2177		nrico of turning into New Jersey. So my apologies for	
2178	that.		

2170		
2179 2180 2181 2182 2183 2184 2185 2186 2187 2188 2189	alone, my two neighb houses have been on live there and you se matter how many Kro neighborhood, people think it has to do o overdevelopment and go on record. I know	is area is being very overdeveloped. In my neighborhood fors—hopefully they didn't move on account of me, but their is the market, both of them, for almost a year now. When you see what's going on, people are not moving to this area. No egers we build, Targets, Bojangles, whatever they put in this e are not coming. I know that's a whole other meeting, but I with the schools, personally. It troubles me to see the difference that the clear-cutting of trees over and over. So I just want to be I probably can't stop anything, but I just want to go on troubles me in that area.
2190	Mr. Witte -	
2191 2192	IVII. VVILLE -	Do we have any questions for Ms. Stewart?
2193	Mr. Branin -	Ms. Stewart, where are you from?
2194 2195	Ms. Stewart -	I'm from Richmond. Why?
2196 2197	Mr. Branin -	I thought you might be from New Jersey.
2198		, are again, and are are are a conseq.
2199 2200	Ms. Stewart -	I'm from Richmond.
2201	Ms. Jones -	Excuse me. I have family in New Jersey. Let's just-
2202 2203	Ms. Stewart -	No, I am a native Richmonder.
2204 2205 2206 2207	Ms. Moore - name?	I may have missed it, but can you spell your last
2208	Ms. Stewart -	Yes. It's S-t-e-w-a-r-t. Thank you for listening.
2209 2210 2211 2212 2213 2214		Just let me say one thing. It is true that homes do sit ous reasons. I don't know the situation, obviously, with your een a frustrating real estate market. There may be many
2215	Ms. Stewart -	Absolutely.
2216 2217 2218 2219 2220	_	Quality development I think always finds a good shere, certainly we will try our best to make sure that it is a sality addition to your area.
2221 2222	Ms. Stewart - building more. It does	I just hate to see these houses for sale and then sn't make sense to me to see this overdevelopment. That's

April 9, 2015 49 Planning Commission

all. Thank you.

2225	Mr. Witte -	Thank you. Sir?
2226		O I : II : I - t - t 0400 II Dood
2227	Mr. Aleksandrov -	Good evening. I'm a resident at 8100 Hungary Road,
2228	which is directly on the otl	her side of—
2229		
2230	Mr. Witte -	Can you state your name, please?
2231	M. Al-L	Ob. 1 and a since Alabasandan Alabasandray is my name
2232	Mr. Aleksandrov -	Oh, I apologize. Aleksandar Aleksandrov is my name.
2233	If you'd like me to spell the	at, I can.
2234		
2235	Mr. Witte -	Yes.
2236		
2237	Mr. Aleksandrov -	It's A-I-e-k-s-a-n-d-a-r. Last name is A-I-e-k-s-a-n-d-r-
2238	O-V.	
2239		
2240	Mr. Witte -	You have the floor, sir.
	IVII. VVILLE -	Tou have the hoor, sir.
2241	Mr. Alaliaandraii	There was the net year well prepared for this
2242	Mr. Aleksandrov -	
2243		ter the other day. I haven't had a chance to look at the
2244		opment. But adding to the density of this neighborhood I
2245		ea. I think that the R-2 zoning or the residential single-
2246		cular place will be much better for the area considering
2247	all of the townhomes sur	rounding and the one piece of land that has residential
2248		ween Hungary and Hungary Spring Road. This was
2249		nily zoning. I don't understand why we need to add
2250		one little sliver of land there.
2251	additional dollors to the c	
2252	Also the water retention	n is probably going to be an issue as well to the
2253 2254	surrounding single-lamily	homes that are just across the street.
2255	Mr. Witte -	All right. Do we have any questions?
2256	Wil. Wille -	All right. Do we have any questions:
2257	Mr. Aleksandrov -	One other thing. Looking at this, it looks like the
2258		nent is right in front of my entrance on the other side. It
2259		problem with traffic there. It's very close to the big
2260		load and Hungary Spring Road. That's it for me. Thank
2261	you.	
2262		
2263	Mr. Witte -	Okay. Thank you, sir. Can the applicant come
2264	forward, please?	
2265	•	
2266	Mr. Sowers -	Good evening, Mr. Chairman, members of the
2267		Christian Sowers, and I represent the applicant.
2268		and a special section of the section
2269	I helieve the staff has f	airly summarized this case. It is compatible with the
2207	i policyo tilo stali ilas l	any caminanted the case. It is compatible with the

surrounding residential communities and meets the objectives of an under-

	2271 2272 2273	landscape buffer. It will ha	ease has proffered quality building materials, a 25-foot we minimal impact to schools and other public facilities, irrounding road network that can handle the traffic.
	2274 2275 2276 2277		ue to work with staff in order to resolve a few of the age concerns. We respectfully ask that you recommend be Board.
	2278 2279 2280 2281	I certainly would like to a you had mentioned somet	nswer any questions that you may have. Mrs. Jones, hing, if I may—
	2282 2283	Ms. Jones -	Yes.
	2284 2285 2286 2287 2288	•	—about the BMP location. Unfortunately, my engineer and couldn't be here. If the Commission and the Board zoning request, I believe that's an item that can be
	2289 2290	Ms. Jones -	Thank you.
	2291 2292	Mr. Sowers -	Yes ma'am.
)	2293 2294	Mr. Witte -	These housekeeping items, Mr. Sowers.
	2295 2296	Mr. Sowers -	Yes sir.
	2297 2298 2299	Mr. Witte - tree per unit.	I understand there is a landscaping issue with the one
	2300 2301	Mr. Sowers -	Yes sir.
	2302 2303 2304	Mr. Witte - and quality and materials	You're going to do this project very similar in design to the property across the street?
	2305 2306	Mr. Sowers -	Yes sir.
	2307 2308 2309	Mr. Witte - between now and the Boa	And you're going to work out those two issues rd?
	23·10 23·11	Mr. Sowers -	Yes sir.
	2312 2313 2314	Mr. Witte - stoops?	All right. And the other things were the steps and
)	2315 2316	Mr. Sowers -	Yes.

2317	Mr. Witte -	You're going to take care of that issue?
2318		
2319	Mr. Sowers -	Yes sir. It's just the language, the way—
2320		
2321	Mr. Witte -	And one other thing that I had was the fence height. I
2322	don't think that was taken	care of in the proffers.
2323		
2324	Mr. Sowers -	The fence height.
2325	Will COWCIO	The folice height.
	Mr. Witte -	I may have missed it.
2326	IVII. VVILLE -	Thay have missed it.
2327	Mr. Causero	Mr. Chairman what proffer condition was that sir?
2328	Mr. Sowers -	Mr. Chairman, what proffer condition was that, sir?
2329	14 1454	MARIE DE CONTROL DE LA CONTROL
2330	Mr. Witte -	Well, let's just say we'll work on those also.
2331		
2332	Mr. Sowers -	Yes sir. Noted.
2333		
2334	Mr. Witte -	The only other thing I have to bring up that we will
2335	work on later is the buildi	ng materials. It would be beneficial as far as the Fire
2336	Department is concerned	to eliminate the vinyl soffit so it doesn't spread fires
2337	through the roofline to other	er buildings.
2338	0	
2339	Mr. Sowers -	Yes sir.
2340	mi. comerc	100 0
2341	Mr. Witte -	You don't have an issue with that, do you?
2342	Will. Willie	Tod don't have an loads with that, as you.
4.344		
	Mr Sowers	I do not
2343	Mr. Sowers -	I do not.
2343 2344		
2343 2344 2345	Mr. Sowers - Mr. Witte -	I do not. All right. Are there any other questions?
2343 2344 2345 2346	Mr. Witte -	All right. Are there any other questions?
2343 2344 2345 2346 2347	Mr. Witte - Ms. Jones -	
2343 2344 2345 2346 2347 2348	Mr. Witte -	All right. Are there any other questions?
2343 2344 2345 2346 2347	Mr. Witte - Ms. Jones - potential expansion area?	All right. Are there any other questions? Mr. Sowers, is this wooded area intended to be a
2343 2344 2345 2346 2347 2348	Mr. Witte - Ms. Jones - potential expansion area? Mr. Sowers -	All right. Are there any other questions?
2343 2344 2345 2346 2347 2348 2349	Mr. Witte - Ms. Jones - potential expansion area?	All right. Are there any other questions? Mr. Sowers, is this wooded area intended to be a
2343 2344 2345 2346 2347 2348 2349 2350	Mr. Witte - Ms. Jones - potential expansion area? Mr. Sowers -	All right. Are there any other questions? Mr. Sowers, is this wooded area intended to be a
2343 2344 2345 2346 2347 2348 2349 2350 2351	Mr. Witte - Ms. Jones - potential expansion area? Mr. Sowers -	All right. Are there any other questions? Mr. Sowers, is this wooded area intended to be a
2343 2344 2345 2346 2347 2348 2349 2350 2351 2352	Mr. Witte - Ms. Jones - potential expansion area? Mr. Sowers - developed.	All right. Are there any other questions? Mr. Sowers, is this wooded area intended to be a No ma'am. That area will be protected. It will never be
2343 2344 2345 2346 2347 2348 2349 2350 2351 2352 2353	Mr. Witte - Ms. Jones - potential expansion area? Mr. Sowers - developed.	All right. Are there any other questions? Mr. Sowers, is this wooded area intended to be a No ma'am. That area will be protected. It will never be
2343 2344 2345 2346 2347 2348 2349 2350 2351 2352 2353 2354 2355	Mr. Witte - Ms. Jones - potential expansion area? Mr. Sowers - developed. Mr. Branin -	All right. Are there any other questions? Mr. Sowers, is this wooded area intended to be a No ma'am. That area will be protected. It will never be Why is that, Mr. Sowers?
2343 2344 2345 2346 2347 2348 2349 2350 2351 2352 2353 2354 2355 2356	Mr. Witte - Ms. Jones - potential expansion area? Mr. Sowers - developed. Mr. Branin - Mr. Sowers -	All right. Are there any other questions? Mr. Sowers, is this wooded area intended to be a No ma'am. That area will be protected. It will never be Why is that, Mr. Sowers? The project, sir, has some wetlands on it.
2343 2344 2345 2346 2347 2348 2349 2350 2351 2352 2353 2354 2355 2356 2357	Mr. Witte - Ms. Jones - potential expansion area? Mr. Sowers - developed. Mr. Branin -	All right. Are there any other questions? Mr. Sowers, is this wooded area intended to be a No ma'am. That area will be protected. It will never be Why is that, Mr. Sowers?
2343 2344 2345 2346 2347 2348 2349 2350 2351 2352 2353 2354 2355 2356 2357 2358	Mr. Witte - Ms. Jones - potential expansion area? Mr. Sowers - developed. Mr. Branin - Mr. Sowers -	All right. Are there any other questions? Mr. Sowers, is this wooded area intended to be a No ma'am. That area will be protected. It will never be Why is that, Mr. Sowers? The project, sir, has some wetlands on it. So it's wetland?
2343 2344 2345 2346 2347 2348 2349 2350 2351 2352 2353 2354 2355 2356 2357 2358 2359	Mr. Witte - Ms. Jones - potential expansion area? Mr. Sowers - developed. Mr. Branin - Mr. Sowers -	All right. Are there any other questions? Mr. Sowers, is this wooded area intended to be a No ma'am. That area will be protected. It will never be Why is that, Mr. Sowers? The project, sir, has some wetlands on it.
2343 2344 2345 2346 2347 2348 2349 2350 2351 2352 2353 2354 2355 2356 2357 2358 2359 2360	Mr. Witte - Ms. Jones - potential expansion area? Mr. Sowers - developed. Mr. Branin - Mr. Sowers - Mr. Branin - Mr. Sowers -	All right. Are there any other questions? Mr. Sowers, is this wooded area intended to be a No ma'am. That area will be protected. It will never be Why is that, Mr. Sowers? The project, sir, has some wetlands on it. So it's wetland? It is. Well, not the entirety of the site.
2343 2344 2345 2346 2347 2348 2349 2350 2351 2352 2353 2354 2355 2356 2357 2358 2359	Mr. Witte - Ms. Jones - potential expansion area? Mr. Sowers - developed. Mr. Branin - Mr. Sowers -	All right. Are there any other questions? Mr. Sowers, is this wooded area intended to be a No ma'am. That area will be protected. It will never be Why is that, Mr. Sowers? The project, sir, has some wetlands on it. So it's wetland?

	2262		
	2363	Mr. Sowers -	Correct We are currently working with the DEO and
	2364		Correct. We are currently working with the DEQ and ere is a certain limitation on what we can impact on the
	2365	•	in as wooded area will never be impacted.
	2366	Site. That area that 5 Show	ii as wooded area wiii never be impacted.
	2367	Mr. Branin -	Okay Ougstion to you Mr. Cowers If indeed you
	2368		Okay. Question to you, Mr. Sowers. If indeed you
	2369	can't put that BMP in there	e, what are you going do?
	2370	Mr. Course	Pel house to discuss that with my anginess the not
	2371		I'd have to discuss that with my engineer. I'm not
	2372	comfortable with making—	it could go underground, yes.
	2373	Mr. Dronin	Coundary and detention sustains
	2374	Mr. Branin -	Go underground detention system?
	2375	Mr. Course	Vac that's nessible
	2376	Mr. Sowers -	Yes, that's possible.
	2377	Mr. Dronin	And then you could make that a market work or come
	2378	Mr. Branin -	And then you could make that a pocket park or some
	2379	green space as an amenity	y.
	2380	Mr. Course	Vaa
	2381	Mr. Sowers -	Yes.
	2382	Ma Dannia	Mandal 4 4ba4 ba asa40
	2383	Mr. Branin -	Wouldn't that be neat?
	2384	Ma Lashavak	
	2385	Mr. Leabough -	One quick question relating to the porches. Are you
	2386	proposing slab on grade?	
	2387	Mr. Course	Vacain
	2388	Mr. Sowers -	Yes sir.
	2389	Mr. Loobough	What material would the entrance he other than
	2390	9	What material would the entrances be other than uldn't propose a wood-type stoop or anything. I'm just
	2391	trying to understand that p	
	2392 2393	trying to understand that p	TOTIET.
	2393	Mr. Witte -	We just wanted to get the proffer language consistent
	2394	with other areas.	we just wanted to get the profiler language consistent
	2396	with other areas.	
	2390	Mr. Leabough -	Thank you.
	2398	Wir. Leabougii -	mank you.
	2399	Mr. Sowers -	Thank you.
	2400	Wir. Cowers -	mank you.
	2400	Mr. Witte -	Any other questions? Thank you, sir.
	2402	Will Wille -	Any other questions: Thank you, sir.
	2403	Mr. Sowers -	Thank you.
	2403	IVII. OUVVCIS -	main you.
	2404	Mr. Witte -	With that being said and the agreement of Mr. Sowers
	2406		between now and the Board, I move that REZ2014-
	2407		ers for RCS Development Corporation, move to the
	2407		a recommendation of approval.
4	2700	Dodia of Oapervisors with	a recommendation of approval.

2409		
2410	Mr. Branin -	Second.
2411		
2412	Mr. Witte -	We have a motion by Mr. Witte, a second by Mr.
2413	Branin. All in favor say ay	ye. All opposed say no. The ayes have it; the motion
2414	passes. Thank you.	
2415		
2416	REASON -	Acting on a motion by Mr. Witte, seconded by Mr.
2417	Branin, the Planning Com	mission voted 5-0 (one abstention) to recommend the
2418	Board of Supervisors gran	the request because it reflects the type of residential
2419	growth in the area and the	proffered conditions would provide for a higher quality
2420	of development than would	
2421		
2422	Ms. Moore -	Mr. Chairman, that leads us to the last case this
2423	evening for public hearing	, which is on page 3 of your agenda. It is REZ2015-
2424	00010. The representativ	e is David Hamnett for The Kittrell Company. The
2425	presentation will be done b	
2426		,
2427	REZ2015-00010	David Hamnett for The Kittrell Company: Request
2428		ultural District to R-3C One-Family Residence District
2429		69-5827 containing 1.51 acres located on the west line
2430		Route 157) approximately 150' north of its intersection
2431		The applicant proposes single family homes. The use
2432		ng ordinance regulations and proffered conditions. The
2433		recommends Suburban Residential 2, density should
2434	not exceed 3.4 units per ac	
2435	not exceed a strained post and	
2436	Mr. Witte -	Is there any opposition to REZ2015-00010, David
2437		ompany? I see none. Mr. Humphreys.
2438		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
2439	Mr. Humphreys -	Thank you Mr. Chairman, members of the Planning
2440	Commission. I'll try to mak	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
2441	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	7
2442	This request is to rezone a	approximately 1.51 acres from A-1 to R-3C to allow for
2443		e-family residences. The existing single-family home
2444		the construction of the proposed subdivision.
2445		The second secon
2446	To the west and the s	outh, beyond the adjacent acreage parcel, is the
2447		he Winterberry subdivision was zoned R-3C with cases
2448		C-97. Across Springfield Road to the east are two
2449		cant and one with an existing detached single-family
2450	• .	proposed Estates at Winterberry, which was approved
2451	with REZ2013-00007.	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
2452		
2453	The site is designated Sub	ourban Residential 2 on the 2026 Comprehensive Plan
2454		ity not to exceed 3.4 units per acre.

2457 2458

2459 2460 2461

2462 2463 2464

2466 2467

2465

2468 2469

2470 2471

2472 2473

2474 2475

2476 2477 2478

2479 2480

2481

2482

2483

2486

2489

2490

2484 2485

2487 2488

2491 2492

2493 2494

2495 2496

2497

2498 2499

2500

A revised proffered conceptual has just been distributed to you. It reflects the most recent plans for the Estates at Winterberry. This plan shows the subject parcel being divided into five new lots and two other portions being added to lots platted with the Estates at Winterberry. A newly constructed road, as shown on the conceptual plan, would grant access to Springfield Road, a VDOT-maintained roadway, for the proposed lots as well as the lots planned with the Estates at Winterberry to the north.

The applicant has submitted revised proffers dated April 3, 2015, which have just been distributed to you. These proffers include, but are not limited to:

- a minimum finished floor area of 2,400 square feet;
- a prohibition of two homes with the same elevation being located adjacently, and at least two side windows on the side elevations of home on corner lots:
- thirty-year dimensional shingles;
- brick or stone foundations:
- irrigated and sodded front and side yards;
- a minimum of two car garages with a clear space dimension for all homes and a minimum of 75 percent of those being side or rear loaded:
- a limit on construction hours; and
- a prohibition of certain fencing materials.

Overall, this request is consistent with the land use recommendation of the 2026 Plan and would continue the residential development pattern in the area. The applicant has also provided a number of assurances to help define the development's overall quality and mitigate potential impacts. For these reasons, staff supports this request.

This concludes my presentation. I will be happy to take any questions.

Mr. Witte -Do we have any questions for Mr. Humphreys?

Mr. Humphreys, from a point of clarification, you Ms. Moore mentioned that the proffer dates were April 3rd; what was handed is April 2nd. I just want to clarify that for the record.

Mr. Humphreys -I'm sorry.

Mr. Witte -Thank you.

I have a quick question. So there are existing homes Mr. Leabough here, correct?

2501 2502	Mr. Humphreys -	The subdivision is currently under construction. The ack in 2014, the beginning of 2014. It was a 2013 case.	
2503	rezoning was approved back in 2014, the beginning of 2014. It was a 2010 case		
2504	Mr. Leabough -	Is what is being presented today consistent with those	
2505	previous proffers?	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
2506			
2507	Mr. Humphreys -	The proffers are identical with the one exception that	
2508	there is no signage prof	fer with this case. The signage for the subdivision is	
2509	actually located on the pre	eviously approved case.	
2510			
2511	Mr. Leabough -	So these are consistent with what was previously	
2512	approved.		
2513	M. 11	V	
2514	Mr. Humphreys -	Yes.	
2515	NAs NA/itto	Thou are exactly is my understanding	
2516	Mr. Witte -	They are exactly, is my understanding.	
2517 2518	Mr. Leabough -	Okay. So one other question related to the HOA.	
2519		ally be joining the existing HOA?	
2520	These lots would essentit	be joining the existing frence	
2521	Mr. Humphreys -	That is my understanding.	
2522		The state of the s	
2523	Mr. Leabough -	Not a new HOA created for these lots.	
2524			
2525	Mr. Humphreys -	No.	
2526			
2527	Ms. Jones -	Is there an HOA?	
2528		V T	
2529	Mr. Humphreys -	Yes. They worked it out to be added to—	
2530	Ms. Jones -	Thorois: I'm corn	
2531 2532	Ms. Jones -	There is; I'm sorry.	
2533	Mr. Humphreys -	My understanding is with the previous case they	
2534	added it to Winterberry.	my anderstanding is with the previous case they	
2535	auda it is 11 into 12 in j.		
2536	Ms. Jones -	I missed it. Okay. I see it now.	
2537			
2538	Mr. Humphreys -	That never happened? Oh, okay. They had talked	
2539		berry before, but now this is going to be separate, the	
2540	Estates at Winterberry wil	be separate from Winterberry itself.	
2541			
2542	Ms. Jones -	Winterberry is built out.	
2543	Mr. Humphraya	Mintorhouse has been built for suite and time	
2544	Mr. Humphreys -	Winterberry has been built for quite some time.	
2545 2546	Ms. Jones -	Yes. Okay.	
2340	1VIO. UUI 1CO "	ics. Oray.	

	2547				
	2548	Mr. Witte -	All right. Any other questions? Would the applicant		
	2549	please come forward?			
	2550				
	2551	Mr. Hamnett -	Mr. Chairman, members of the Commission, my		
	2552		presenting the applicant for the Estates at Winterberry.		
	2553	We are actually the builder developer on the Estates at Winterberry. We're			
	2554	currently working on section one, which is on Kimbermere Court. We haven't			
	2555	started the clearing for Blue Holly Circle as of yet.			
	2556	started the clearing for blue fronty office as of yet.			
	2557	Our plan is to just add these additional five blocks to the subdivision. The Estates			
	2558		rate HOA than Winterberry; they didn't want to be		
			separate. But all we're trying to do is just add five new		
	2559				
	2560	lots to the Estates at Winterberry subdivision.			
	2561	NA- 10/itto	Co there are no changes to the HOA?		
	2562	Mr. Witte -	So there are no changes to the HOA?		
	2563	Ma Hammatt	No sin		
	2564	Mr. Hamnett -	No sir.		
	2565	NA- NACH-	No about a the subdivision weathers		
	2566	Mr. Witte -	No changes to the subdivision proffers.		
	2567	Mar I I amount	No. of a		
	2568	Mr. Hamnett -	No sir.		
١	2569	A. A. A. P. II.	From this is found.		
,	2570	Mr. Witte -	Everything is lovely.		
	2571		V!-		
	2572	Mr. Hamnett -	Yes sir.		
	2573		United the Control of the Control of		
	2574	Ms. Jones -	How many homeowners will be in the Estates at		
	2575	Winterberry?			
	2576		III - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1		
	2577	Mr. Hamnett -	It's nineteen homes as of right now. We do have an		
			We bought the original land from Mr. Humphreys. At		
	2579	some point, if he ever decides to sell, we may develop lot 5 as well.			
	2580				
	2581	Ms. Jones -	Do they have a common area they have to maintain?		
	2582				
	2583	Mr. Hamnett -	The common area is actually wetlands, so you can't		
			ides the insurance with it that's carried with the HOA.		
	2585				
	2586				
	2587				
	2588	Ms. Jones -	Among nineteen owners?		
	2589				
	2590	Mr. Hamnett -	Yes ma'am.		
6	2591				
1	2592	Ms. Jones -	I hope that's not too expensive.		

2593	Mr. Hamnett -	The insurance on the wetlands wasn't too bad, so I
2594		
2595	think they got it all straight	•
2596	Mar Lankavak	What would the accomment be an that? Just on
2597	Mr. Leabough -	What would the assessment be on that? Just an
2598	estimate.	
2599		
2600	Mr. Hamnett -	The estimate on the yearly for the insurance, I don't
2601	have it written down with n	ne right now. But I can—
2602		
2603	Mr. Leabough -	HOA assessment.
2604		
2605	Mr. Hamnett -	Oh, HOA. About \$225 a year.
2606		
2607	Mr. Leabough -	That's not bad.
2608		
2609	Mr. Witte -	Any other questions by the Commission? Okay.
2610	Thank you, Mr. Hamnett.	Tilly out of quotions by the commission. Skay.
2611	mank you, wit. Hammott.	
	Mr. Hamnett -	Sure. Thank you.
2612	Wir. Hammett -	Sure. Thank you.
2613	Mr. Witte -	That being said, I move that REZ2015-00010, David
2614		
2615	Hamnett for The Kittrell Company, move to the Board of Supervisors with	
2616	recommendation of approv	val.
2617	M. A. L.	0
2618	Mr. Archer -	Second.
2619		747 1 A 1479
2620	Mr. Witte -	We have a motion by Mr. Witte, a second by Mr.
2621		ye. All opposed say no. The ayes have it; the motion
2622	passes. Thank you.	
2623		
2624	REASON -	Acting on a motion by Mr. Witte, seconded by Mr.
2625	Archer, the Planning Com	mission voted 5-0 (one abstention) to recommend the
2626	Board of Supervisors gi	rant the request because it is consistent with the
2627	recommendations of the C	comprehensive Plan and the adjacent zoning pattern.
2628		
2629	I want to thank Ms. Moore	for filling in. A most admirable job.
2630		
2631	Ms. Moore -	We're not done yet.
2632		7
2633	Mr. Witte -	We're close.
2634		
2635	Ms. Moore -	So next, Mr. Chairman, is the approval of the minutes
2636		ion meeting on March 12, 2015.
2637	to the righting commission	on mooning on major 12, 2010.
	Ms. Jones -	I mayo we approve the minutes as distributed
2638	IVIS. JULIES -	I move we approve the minutes as distributed.

	2639		
,	2640	Mr. Leabough -	Second.
	2641		
	2642	Mr. Witte -	All in favor say aye. All opposed say no. The ayes
	2643	have it; the motion passe	S.
	2644		
	2645	Mr. Leabough -	You didn't ask for those that are opposed.
	2646		
	2647	Mr. Witte -	Any opposed? No.
	2648		
	2649	Mr. Archer -	No, Mr. Chairman, but since I was not here, any
	2650	remarks attributed to me	are considered null and void.
	2651		
	2652	Ms. Moore -	Mr. Chairman, I have nothing else to report tonight.
	2653		
	2654	Mr. Witte -	Do we have a motion to adjourn?
	2655		
	2656	Mr. Archer -	So moved.
	2657	25 25	
	2658	Mr. Branin -	Second.
	2659		
	2660	Mr. Witte -	Thank you everyone.
ì	2661		
,	2662		
	2663		
	2664		Claud How
	2665		Ms. Jean M. Moore, Acting Secretary
	2666		0
	2667		2121
	2668		1)41,8116
	2669		12/0/NOVE 1
	2670		Mr. Robert H. Witte Jr. Chairman